
UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date: June 18, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Motion: THAT the Board approve the June 18, 2024 open session agenda, as

circulated.

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Motion: THAT the Board approve the May 21, 2024 open session minutes, as 1 

circulated.

D. DELEGATIONS
None.

E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
1. Campus and Community Planning Report – Carole Jolly, Director of Community 5

Development and Engagement, Campus and Community Planning

2. Electoral Area A Director Monthly Report – Jen McCutcheon, Electoral Area A
Director

F. REPORTS
1. June 2024 Management Report 8 

2. UNA Administrative Office Lease Renewal Report – Wegland Sit, Operations 25 
Manager

Relevant Attachments:

• Lease Extension Agreement for the UNA Administrative Office 29 

• Wesbrook Village Sublease Office Form Lease for the UNA Administrative  34
Officer – 2018-2021

• Office Rent Comparison – June 2024 100 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the UNA Administrative 
Office and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

3. Lot 10 Community Garden Lease Extension Report – Wegland Sit, Operations  101
Manager



   
                 

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
Date: June 18, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 
 Relevant Attachments: 

• Lot 10 Community Garden License Extension 104 

• Lot 10 Community Garden License Agreement 2021-2024 105 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the Lot 10 Community 
Garden and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Update 

a. FY2023/24 Preliminary Financial Results – Athena Koon, Finance Manager 119 

Relevant Attachments: 

• FY2023/24 Fire Service Charge Calculation 133 

• Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy (#05-13) – Amendment #3 –  136 
December 2010 

• UBC Financial Support Letter – Dated July 19, 2021 141 

b. 2024/25 Insurance Renewal Report – Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 144 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to agree on behalf of 
the UNA to the insurance coverages for the period July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

5. Governance & Human Resources Committee Update 

a. 2024 UNA Bylaw Amendments Report – Chris Hakim, Corporate Services  148 
Specialist 

Relevant Attachments: 

• Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Clean Version 151 

• Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Redlined Version 154 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board seek approval at the 2024 UNA Annual General Meeting for the 
proposed amendments to the UNA Bylaws, as circulated. 

6. Neighbours Agreement Committee Update – Director Holmes 

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 



   
                 

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
Date: June 18, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 
 H. NEW BUSINESS 

None.   

I. ADJOURNMENT 
Recommendation: 

THAT the Board adjourn into a closed session to discuss matters that are, or are related 
to, discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where disclosure of the 
information being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s interests; the receipt of 
advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for 
that purpose; and the approval of minutes for a closed session or restricted closed 
session of a Board meeting. 



      
  

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2024 

Wesbrook Community Centre 

MINUTES 
 

 
PRESENT: 
Richard Watson – Chair  
Bill Holmes 
Eagle Glassheim 
Fei Liu 
Murray McCutcheon

UBC MEMBERS: 
Carole Jolly 
Holly Shepherd 
 
AMS DESIGNATED STUDENT: 
Ayesha Irfan 
 
STAFF:  
Paul Thorkelsson – Chief Administrative Officer 
Athena Koon – Finance Manager 
Chris Hakim – Corporate Services Specialist 
Dave Gillis – Recreation Manager 
Emmanuel Samoglou – Social Media Specialist 
Glenda Ollero – Communications Manager 
Wegland Sit – Operations Manager 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
The University Neighbourhoods Association (UNA) Board meeting’s open session was 
called to order at 5:32 p.m. 

The Chair welcomed Ayesha Irfan, the newly appointed AMS Designated Student. The 
Chair also welcomed Holly Shepherd, who returned to her role as a UBC Member. 

The Chair acknowledged that the meeting was held on the traditional and unceded 
territories of the Musqueam people. 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
MOVED by the Chair 

SECONDED by Director Glassheim 

THAT the Board approve the May 21, 2024 open session agenda, as circulated.  

CARRIED 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MOVED by the Chair 

1



      
      

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2024 

Wesbrook Community Centre 

SECONDED by Director McCutcheon 

THAT the Board approve the April 16, 2024 open session minutes, as circulated. 

CARRIED 

D. DELEGATIONS 
None. 

E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 
1. Campus and Community Planning Report 

Carole Jolly, the UBC Director of Community Development and Engagement, 
presented the report contained in the meeting package, followed by a question from 
the Board. 

2. Electoral Area A Monthly Report 

A report was not presented this meeting. No questions followed.  

F. REPORTS 
1. May 2024 Management Report 

The Management team presented their respective reports contained in the meeting 
package, followed by questions from and discussion amongst the Board. 

2. Online Version of the UNA Guidebook Report 

The Communications Manager presented the report contained in the meeting 
package, followed by questions from the Board. 

MOVED by the Chair 

SECONDED by Director Glassheim 

THAT the Board approve the online version of the UNA Guidebook for 
publication on the UNA website and distribution to the community. 

CARRIED 
3. UNA Administrative Office Lease Renewal Report 

The Operations Manager presented the report contained in the meeting package, 
followed by questions from and discussion amongst the Board. 

4. Print Issue Publication Options for The Campus Resident Report 

The Communications Manager presented the report contained in the meeting 
package, followed by questions from and discussion amongst the Board. 

5. UNA Staff Parking Plan Report 

The Operations Manager presented the report contained in the meeting package, 
followed by questions from and discussion amongst the Board. 

2



      
      

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2024 

Wesbrook Community Centre 

* * * * 

The Board recessed at 7:04 p.m. and reconvened at 7:25 p.m. 

* * * * 

6. UBC Community Amenity Charges Report 

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the report contained in the meeting 
package, followed by a question from the Board. 

7. Governance & Human Resources Committee Update 

a. Corporate Policy Framework Report 

The Corporate Services Specialist presented the report contained in the meeting 
package. No questions followed. 

MOVED by the Chair 

SECONDED by Director Holmes 

THAT the Board approve the proposed Corporate Policy Framework (#01-
19), as circulated. 

CARRIED 
b. 2024 UNA Board of Directors Election Planning Report 

The Corporate Services Specialist presented the report contained in the meeting 
package, followed by questions from and discussion amongst the Board. 

8. Neighbours Agreement Committee Update 

Director Holmes provided a verbal report. No questions followed. 

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 

H. NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

I. ADJOURNMENT  
MOVED by the Chair 

SECONDED by Director McCutcheon 

THAT the Board adjourn into a closed session to discuss matters that are, or are 
related to, discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where 
disclosure of the information being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s 
interests, and the approval of minutes for a closed session or restricted closed 
session of a Board meeting. 

CARRIED 

3



      
      

UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2024 

Wesbrook Community Centre 

 

The meeting adjourned into a closed session at 7:49 p.m. 

* * * * 

4



 Memorandum 

From: Simmi Puri, Communications Manager, Campus + Community Planning 
To: UNA Board 
Date: June 18, 2024 
Subject: Monthly Update from Campus and Community Planning 

Film & Events Notification 

June 

Vancouver Half Marathon. Road closures will apply.  
Sunday, June 23rd from 7:30-11am.  
Learn more: https://planning.ubc.ca/event/vancouver-half-marathon 

Exams 
June 24th to 28th 

July 

Canada Day. University closed. 
Monday, July 1st 

Roadwork update 

• The watermain replacement work on 16th Avenue is progressing well and the
northbound lane on Wesbrook Mall from Berton Avenue to 16th Avenue is currently
open. Crews will be returning at the end of June to wrap up the project, at which time the
northbound lane will be closed again but a date has not been confirmed.  Updates to the
project will be posted on the C+CP roadwork page: https://planning.ubc.ca/roadwork.

• Ross Drive recently reopened following the completion of the Neighbourhood District
Energy System infrastructure. There will still be ongoing construction nearby at BCR 5/6
as well as some utility work on Wesbrook Mall later this summer. More updates will be
provided once they are known.

The various projects in Wesbrook Place are being coordinated to minimize impacts to 
neighbourhood residents and visitors. 

5

https://planning.ubc.ca/event/vancouver-half-marathon
https://planning.ubc.ca/roadwork


2 

 
 
Update on NCAP 
 
The UBC Board of Governors has approved the Neighborhood Climate Action Plan (NCAP), which 
sets a pathway to a net-zero and climate resilient community for the residential neighbourhoods 
on UBC’s Vancouver campus.  
 
Community feedback from two rounds of public engagement alongside collaboration with the 
UNA, UBC Properties Trust and industry, utility and academic partnerships have been essential in 
ensuring NCAP is both ambitious and achievable. 
 
NCAP will guide neighbourhood climate action work for years to come, including residential 
building policies and programs, ecology, climate emergency preparedness, transportation and 
zero waste planning. It will also guide amended and future neighbourhood plans, shaping how 
UBC’s Land Use Plan is implemented. This work will be undertaken in close partnership with UNA 
staff.   
 
NCAP is a living plan and will adapt and evolve over time, responding to new information, 
technologies and a changing provincial and federal policy landscape.  Learn more about NCAP: 
https://planning.ubc.ca/NCAP 
 
 
 
Development Update 
 

• UBC Properties Trust has applied for a Development Permit for lot BCR 7 on Wesbrook 
Mall in the Wesbrook Place neighbourhood. The application includes a 14-storey market 
rental residential tower with 2-storey townhomes at the base and a 6-storey faculty/staff 
rental building along Wesbrook Mall. Adjacent to the park to the east, 6-storey 
faculty/staff buildings with 2-storey townhomes at the base are proposed. 2.5 levels of 
underground parking and a total of 303 units will be provided. A public open house is 
scheduled for June 19, 2024 from 5:30 PM to 7:00 PM at the Wesbrook Community 
Centre Social Room. Share your written feedback from June 5 to June 26, 2024. Learn 
more: https://planning.ubc.ca/bcr7 

 
• A Development Permit amendment has been issued for a new projecting sign for JJ Bean 

in Central along University Boulevard. 
 

• A Development Permit amendment has been issued for a new commercial tenant 
(Chipotle) in Central for two new under canopy signs and changes to the storefront to 
accommodate a pick-up window. 

 
Community Update 
 

6

https://planning.ubc.ca/NCAP
https://planning.ubc.ca/bcr7


3 

Lions, and Toddlers, and Bears—oh my!  
Join UBC Inspired and Active Kids for an afternoon of pop-up circus play at Tough Toddler on 
June 23, from 11-2! This event is for UBC campus residents 6 and under—get to know your 
neighbours while you juggle, balance, bounce, and play at Osborne Gym. Check out all the fun 
from last year’s event and don’t forget to register this year—registration link can be found at 
www.inspired.ubc.ca/toughtoddler. We hope to see you there! 
 
Inspiring Community Grants  
When your idea comes to life, you can help create inclusivity, belonging, and community at UBC. 
Inspiring Community Grants provide up to $500 to support projects that inspire community 
building and foster connectedness on campus. From coding camps to film festivals, art exhibits to 
soccer sessions, we’re always exited to see the ideas the UBC community has to connect. The 
next cycle of grants is now available—apply at www.inspired.ubc.ca/communitygrants 
 

7

https://youtu.be/-PT_srYapbw?si=tR9i2lMeeCh_ZUFi
http://www.inspired.ubc.ca/toughtoddler
http://www.inspired.ubc.ca/communitygrants


Page 1 of 17 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: June 3, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: June 2024 Management Report 

Background 
The June 2024 Management Report is presented for information. 

Decision Requested 

For information. 

Discussion  

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

Some of the key areas that I worked on include the following: 

Board Relations 

• Attended the May 2024 Land Use Advisory Committee meeting and the June 2024
Governance & Human Resources Committee, Finance & Audit Committee, and
Neighbours Agreement Committee meetings.

• Continued the weekly meeting schedule with the UNA Chair.

• Supported the Board in preparation for the June meeting with UBC President.

Operations 

• Continued planning for the upcoming 2024 UNA Board of Directors election and
AGM.

• Re-initiated discussion with Municipal Insurance Authority on opportunities for UNA
insurance coverage in the future.

• Confirmed UNA membership and access to information from the Union of British
Columbia Municipalities (UBCM)

• Participated in and supported work with UBC to implement emergency water
source program for UBC and the neighbourhoods.

Finance 

• Supported financial system implementation and year end processes.

8



   
                 

Page 2 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• Reviewed financial investment opportunities for the UNA with the Municipal Finance 
Authority (MFA). 

Programs and Services 

• Supported the Neighbours Agreement Committee in its ongoing negotiations with 
UBC on the new Neighbours Agreement. 

• Participated and support continuing work on provision of Childcare Services in the 
UNA, beginning preparations for new Wesbrook facility in 2025. 

Human Resources 

• Supported and led internal UNA HR processes hiring, performance review, internal 
reviews. 

• Ongoing work on the 2024 UNA Compensation review with external consultant. 

Community Relations 

• With UNA Chair met with the new AMS President to exchange introductions and 
share priorities. 

• Met with UBC C+CP and Properties Trust for initial introductions and discussion of 
UNA priorities and opportunities 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

UNA Website 
The Communications Department is working with the Operations Team and our 
developers to upgrade the security and stability of our website by moving it to a new 
server and adding a redundancy server that will run parallel to the main server to ensure 
minimal to zero down time. 
 
The Campus Resident 
The Campus Resident published its latest print issue online on June 6, 2024. The next 
issue will be an online issue for release on July 4, 2024. To read the latest issue, please 
visit  
 
Online UNA Guidebook Launch 
The Board approved the online UNA Guidebook last May and it is scheduled to launch on 
June 21, 2024.  
 
UNA Annual Report 2023 
The Communications Department is working on a modified format for the Annual Report 
that will include more metrics, departmental information and services summary. The 
Annual Report is distributed at the Annual General Meeting in September. 

9



   
                 

Page 3 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

 
Additional Promotions for UNA Camps  
The Communications Department has been working with the Recreation Team to help 
boost promotions for UNA Camps. This year, the Recreation Team has increased the 
number of camps by 50% and additional promotions to help fill spots include an afternoon 
booth at Wesbrook Village, additional take-away materials (post cards) and new 
promotional materials (flags and lawn signs).  
 
Spring Art Fair Promotions 
The Communications Department has been working with Recreation Team to promote the 
Spring Art Fair happening on June 15. Promotional tactics include creating a landing page 
for all event info, running a bookmark contest for a design that will be featured in the 
event’s program/schedule print collateral, and producing additional print signage. 
 
Others: 

• Support for the Operations Team for signage and lawn signs. 
• Support for the Recreation Team for posters and event promotions (Canada Day, 

National Indigenous People’s Day, Spring Art Fair, etc.) 
• Continuing promotions for the UNA Card (Schedule F and F1) and coordinating with  
• Continuing communications support for the parking. 
• Continuing communications support for the UNA Community Field resurfacing. 
• Coordinating with UBC on the content and production of the Services Levy 

information flyer. 
• Coordinating with UBC on roadworks and traffic updates in and around the 

neighbourhoods. 
• Meeting with the UBC Farm communications team to find ways to collaborate on 

event promotions and advisories. 
• Working on updating the UNA’s current media relations policy and develop a 

framework for responding to and pitching stories to the media. 
• Working on a report with metrics for the UNA website, UNA newsletter and social 

media. 
• Working on a social media report for the Board to help with decisions on staffing 

and additional work. 
 

RECREATION 

Highlights of the June 2024 report include: 

Operations 

• Arrival of new events SeaCan for storage located at WCC. 
Finance 

10



Page 4 of 17 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

• Transfer of record of purchase to the new financial system provides greater 
ease and information.

Risk Management 

• Health and Safety Meeting – No Information Available.
Programs and Services 

• Fall program planning is underway.
• Summer Camps are being set up to run – registration is lower than expected and

previous years.
Community Relations 

• Opening of Splash Pad
• Next UBC–UNA Recreation Meeting – June 18
• UBC has agreed to provide metrics of residents’ use of recreation facilities for each

term

FACILITIES REPORT 

Building Hours 

In May, both OBCC and WCC operated on regular hours as follows: 

Hours of 
Operation Wesbrook Community Centre Old Barn Community Centre 

Main Facility Fitness Centre Main Facility Fitness Centre 

Weekday 8:30 am to 10:00 
pm  

6:00 am to 10:00 
pm 

7:00 am to 9:00 
pm 

7:00 am to 9:00 
pm 

Mon – Fri Mon – Fri Mon - Fri Mon - Fri 

Weekend 8:30 am to 9:00 
pm 

7:00 am to 9:00 
pm  

7:00 am to 7:00 
pm 

7:00 am to 7:00 
pm 

Sat & Sun Sat & Sun Sat & Sun Sat & Sun 

• On Victoria Day on May 20, both centres observed the holiday hours: the main
facility opened from 10:00 am to 5:00 pm, and WCC Fitness Centre opened from
7:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Total hours of operations in May: 

WCC OBCC Total 
Building Hours 382 411 793 
FD Staffing Hours 1046.82 452.62 1500 

11



Page 5 of 17 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Staffing 

• 2024 Performance Review with applicable Front Desk employees were completed
on May 19, 2024.

Wesbrook and Old Barn Community Centre 

Front Desk General Services (May) 
2022 2023 2024 

Open Gym 105 430 380 
Parent & Tot Drop in 165 256 264 
Sports Drop in 70 72 632 
Parking Permit Issued 48 125 164 

New Clients 396 400 443 
• OBCC remains an attractive social space for residents and families with children. It

provides great support to the outdoor activities in Jim Taylor Park and Hawthorn
Neighbourhood.

Parking Services 

• The parking renewal for Wesbrook and Hampton Place has gone very well in May
with a gradual increase in the number of permit purchases.

 Issued UNA parking permits (May 1- May 31) Total Number of Permit 
Wesbrook Resident Parking Permit 111 
Wesbrook Visitor Parking Permit 29 
Hampton Resident Parking Permit 8 
Hampton Visitor Parking Permit 11 
2023 Hawthorn Resident and Visitor Parking Permit 5 

UNA Card & Registration 

• The number of new clients registered in the UNA system remain steady compared
to what in the previous months. See the report below:

2022 2023 2024 
New Clients 396  400 443 
UNA Discount Enrollment 216 252 279 
UBC/UTown Discount Enrollment 41 77 58 

12



Page 6 of 17 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

PROGRAMMING REPORT 

Registration Updates 

Spring/Summ
er 2022 

Spring/Summ
er 2023 

Spring/Summ
er #s as of 

Mar 27, 2024 

Spring/Summ
er #s as of 

Apr 29, 2024 

Spring/Summ
er #s as of 

Programs 
Offered  

428 485 485 461 475 

Registered 
Participants 

2752 
 

3567 1879 2302 2552 

Waitlist  349 381 250 287 327 
Withdrawal
s  

417 488 46 168 209 

Category  Spring/Summ
er 2022 

Spring/Summ
er 2023 

Spring/Summe
r 

Revenue as of 
Mar 27, 2024 

Spring/Summ
er Revenue as 

of Apr 29, 
2024 

Spring/Summ
er Revenue as 

of 

Physical 
Activity 

$86,007.03 $120,544.69 $91,833.89 $104,967.19  $111,587.24 

Arts  $48,040.83 $64,155.15 $37,861.07 $50,129.88  $53,387.16 
Music  $28,801.80 $29,153.55 $29,162.00 $27,272.75  $28,448.75 
Education
  

$22,546.40 $28,666.25 $27,040.15 $31,184.28  $31,815.33 

Camps  $115,809.72 $138,387.30 $55,205.60 $63,013.90  $69,075.90 
Events  $955.00 $1,452.00 $800.00 $854.00  $854.00 

TOTAL  $302,160.80 $382,658.90 $244,280.70 $277,422.00  $295,188.38 

Highlight Programming – Wesbrook Community Centre 
• For Fall 2024, we are working on extending musical private lessons by two days

and introducing three new programs for children, two for adults, and six for
preschoolers. We are also enhancing facility space usage by adjusting the timing of
existing programs.

• Working to establish a “Seniors Council” to help guide our programs for seniors and
to encourage volunteerism. Using a “bottom up” approach to ensure that we are
meeting the needs and interests of our community.

• Working with the Youth Coordinator to explore potential programs where youth and
seniors can come together.

Highlight Programming – Old Barn Community Centre 

• New table tennis is drawing good usage.

13



   
                 

Page 7 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Staffing 
• Linda (Senior Coordinator) has returned after lengthy absence. 
• Kieran (Fitness Supervisor) is away on leave. 

Youth Coordinator – UBC - UTown 
• Youth Leadership Program is organizing a Youth Dance on Saturday, June 22 from 

7-9 PM with a Hollywood theme. We are projecting approximately 140 youth in 
attendance. 

• Meeting with local community organizations and school administrators to 
understand the needs of youth in the community and what they can provide in 
terms of workshop and support at UNA  

Connected Communities Coordinator - UBC 
• Family Movie Night - Attendance: 68  
• Revenue: $282.50 (a record!)  
• Norma Rose Point Spring Fair  
• Hosted an engagement booth at the NRP Spring Fair on May 10, where youth 

volunteers served popcorn and cotton candy to over 600 community members.  

Community Relations  

• The Program & Events Team had a two full-day retreat to set goals and plans to 
achieve them this year. 

• Some notable achievements from last year include: 
o Increased events that foster community connection – e.g. Spring Art Fair, 

open mic, busking 
o Incorporated more cultural aspects to events – e.g. performers  
o Increased physical activity options for adults, especially in evenings and 

weekends – e.g. bootcamps, spin 
o Optimized gymnasium & drop-in schedule 
o Established multigenerational programs – e.g. tech for seniors led by youth 
o Continued offering workshops that promote mental and intellectual health – 

e.g. Weaving Wellness, Brain health workshop 
• Some goals that have been set for this year include: 

o Build a culture around volunteering 
o Implement a new Volunteer Management System that allows easier 

communication, recruitment, and tracking of hours 
o Build rapport with volunteers through appreciation and opportunities for 

professional development 
o Focus on increasing social programming – e.g. board game nights, youth 

drop-ins 
o Increase consistent events offerings at Barn on evenings – e.g. comedy 

nights, film screenings 
o Increase early years programming 

14



   
                 

Page 8 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

o Implement streamlined programs & events feedback process 
 

FITNESS REPORT – Kieran Petty 

 
UNA Fitness Centre Attendance  

Wesbrook Monthly Totals 3935 Old Barn Monthly Totals 495 

Sunday Total 454 Sunday Total 57 

Monday total 501 Monday total 73 

Tuesday total  623 Tuesday total  79 

Wednesday Total 678 Wednesday Total 97 

Thursday total  622 Thursday total  75 

Friday Total 659 Friday Total 76 

Saturday total  398 Saturday total  38 

  

Combined Monthly Totals 4430 

Sunday Total 511 

Monday total 574 

Tuesday total  702 

Wednesday Total 775 

Thursday total  697 

Friday Total 735 

Saturday total  436 

  
  

Wesbrook Community Centre - Membership Revenue 

15



   
                 

Page 9 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

                  

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue 

Residen
t 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Residen
t 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 9 $342.90 65 $3,095.30 21 $1,199.94  95 $4,638.14 

1 Month 
Pass 23 $876.30 94 $4,476.28 15 $857.10  132 $6,209.68 

3 Month 
Pass 5 $209.52 44 $5,028.76 0 $-    49 $5,238.28 

6 Month 
Pass 0 $0.00 7 $1,466.64 0 $-    7 $1,466.64 

Year Pass 0 $0.00 10 $3,047.60 0 $-    10 $3,047.60 

Total 37 1428.72 220 17114.58 36 2057.04 293 20600.34 

                  

Old Barn Community Centre - Membership Revenue 

                  

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue 

Residen
t 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Residen
t 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 1 $23.81  19 $542.83  2 $76.20  22 $642.84  

1 Month 
Pass 4 $95.24  13 $371.41  3 $152.40  20 $619.05  

                  

  

Combined - Membership Revenue 

                  

16



   
                 

Page 10 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue 

Residen
t 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Residen
t 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 10 $366.71 84 $3,638.13 23 $1,276.14  117 $5,280.98 

1 Month 
Pass 27 $971.54 107 $4,847.69 18 $1,009.50  152 $6,828.73 

3 Month 
Pass 5 $209.52 44 $5,028.76 0 $-    49 $5,238.28 

6 Month 
Pass 0 $0.00 7 $1,466.64 0 $-    7 $1,466.64 

Year Pass 0 $0.00 10 $3,047.60 0 $-    10 $3,047.60 

Total 42 1547.77 252 18028.82 41 2285.64 335 21862.23 

 
  

May 2023 & May 2024 Membership & Revenue Comparisons 

                

Month & 
Year 

10 
Punch 
Pass 

1 month 
Pass 

3 month 
pass 

6 month 
pass 

1 year 
pass TOTALS DIFFERENC

E IN YEARS 

May 2023 
Purchase

s 82 126 44 5 2 259 +76 new 
memberships 
in May 2024 May 2024 

Purchase
s 117 152 49 7 10 335 

May 2023 
Revenue 

$3,500.0
5  

 
$3,500.05  

 
$5,095.39  

 
$1,047.60  

 
$1,380.95  

 
$14,524.04  $7338.19 

more made in 
May 2024 

May 2024 
Revenue 

$5,280.9
8  

 
$6,828.73  

 
$5,238.28  

 
$1,466.64  

 
$3,047.60  

 
$21,862.23  

  
Fitness News & Updates: 

17



   
                 

Page 11 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• In June, 2 new treadmills will be installed in the Wesbrook Fitness Centre, replacing 
2 old treadmills that were no longer able to be maintained with the safety of patrons 
in mind. These new treads are the same as the new ones that were installed at the 
Old Barn Fitness Centre during renovations in 2023. 

 

EVENTS REPORT  

• Preparations for the Spring Art Fare on June 15th are underway, involving the 
development of a performance schedule featuring 24 music and dance acts, 
coordination with instructors, and gathering art pieces for the gallery show.  

• Developing plans for Canada Day event with Elias to offer floor hockey among 
other events for the day.   

• Neighbours Day has signed their headline act: “DaBoon” A retro British rock band 
inspired by 80’s band the Clash. The band is expected to close out the day with two 
45-minute sets. 
 

May Event Report 

• Mother's Day Tea 
 

Upcoming Events 

• Spring Art Fair – June 15 
• Canada Day – July 1 

 

Volunteers 

• Working on a new Volunteer Management System. Done one demo call. Prepare to 
have another one or two to evaluate.  

 

NEWCOMERS REPORT – Peng Wang 

Newcomers Committee 

• We are looking for two additional UNA Members to join our Newcomers Committee.  

Upcoming Events 

• Sep 14: Newcomer Welcoming Party 
 

BOOKINGS REPORT – Angelica Sanchez 

• Our indoor room rental is only open to meetings, workshops, birthday parties, baby 
showers, or lectures with capacity restriction in place.  

18



   
                 

Page 12 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• Our outdoor rental for Turf Field and Nobel Softball Field are open to external 
bookings.  

• We do not accept indoor room bookings in direct competition with UNA - activities 
or programs we already offer - in accordance with our booking policy. 

 

Bookings Report 

• Wesbrook has the highest request for room bookings. The main categories are 
sports, full-day booking (workshops), external birthday parties, and internal birthday 
parties’ packages. 

• Old Barn has a high demand for weekdays bookings, but it has very limited time 
available for external bookings. 

• Field bookings are mostly requested by UBC sport clubs, UBC Staff, and Triumf 
Staff. 

Submission of Rental Analysis 

• Room rental increased by 6% in May 2024 compared to the same month last year. 
• Field rental decreased in May 2024 compared to the same month last year as UNA 

Field is booked for each season. As from June 26th, the field will undergo repairs, 
therefore there is not bookings for the Summer. 

• Nobel Field was booked by a High School Team for home games and practices in 
2023, making a huge difference with the trend for this year’s booking. 
 

 
• Wesbrook Community continues to be the preferred location to host events, 

workshops, Strata meetings, and celebrations.  
• May 2024 bookings by location is Wesbrook with a 49%, UNA Wesbrook Birthday 

party package with a 31%, and Old Barn with 20%. 
• Bookings are a mixture of residents and non-residents. 

 

19



   
                 

Page 13 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

 
• Room availability is limited at both community centres. People rent ahead of time to 

secure the room at the preferred time. 
• Field booking for April, May and June, were made in April – Start of the Spring 

Season. The field will be closed in July and August. 
• Room rental decreased by 14% in May as people are away or enjoying outdoor 

spaces. 

 
 

• In May, we received 47 emails requesting information to book rooms at both 
community centres and the Field. 

• We completed a total of 9 bookings for the months of May (1), June (7) and July 
(1). 

20



   
                 

Page 14 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• We couldn’t complete 35 requests due to room availability and direct competition. 
 

OPERATIONS + SUSTAINABILITY 

Sustainability Report 

Green Depot Update  

Waste Diversion – April 2024 

• In April, a total of 2522 kilograms of waste was recycled by the Green Depot 
• The Green Depot diverted 35% more clothing in April 2024 than in April 2023 

Waste Diversion – May 2024  

• In May, a total of 2860 kilograms of waste was recycled by the Green Depot 
• The Green Depot diverted 24% more clothing in May 2024 than in May 2023 

Over the months of April and May 2024, nearly 1,200 people used the Green Depot 
facility! And since the beginning of the 2024 calendar year, over 648 kilograms of soft and 
flexible plastics have been recycled and diverted from landfill.  

 

SEEDS Research Partnership Report Complete: Supporting UBC Campus 
Landscapes and Food Systems during Extreme Weather Events 

Through the SEEDS sustainability program, the UNA worked with a group of student-
researchers on a microclimate monitoring project at four community gardens – including 
the UNA’s Greenway South garden. The report identified gardener-focused strategies for 
adapting to extreme weather conditions such as heat domes.  

 

Geese and Goslings at Wesbrook 

A family of Canada geese and their goslings have made Wesbrook their Spring home. 
Information about the protection of Canada geese and goslings under the Migratory Birds 
Convention Act, 1994 (MBCA) has been shared with Wesbrook stratas. Additionally, 
signage is being posted around the neighborhood to discourage harassment of the bird 
family and to help make Wesbrook a safe space for the goslings to grow. 

 

Operations Report 

Wesbrook Tree Assessment  

21



   
                 

Page 15 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

The UNA operations team will work with UBC on the development and rollout of the 
Wesbrook Tree Assessment project. The project team is expected to be able deliver a 
report for the UNA to review late-June. 

 

Coyote Sightings 

The UNA Office has received coyotes sighting reports and reports of displayed aggressive 
coyote behavior in the Chancellor Area. 

If you have coyote sightings, please track it with Stanley Park Ecology Society. This allows 
us to track the frequency and location of coyote sightings. For more information and 
resources on how to co-exist with coyote please visit their website. 

If a coyote displays aggressive or threatening behaviour, report immediately to the BC 
Ministry of Environment emergency call centre at 1-877-952-7277. 

 

Main Mall Greenway Phase Two 

Phase Two of the Main Mall Greenway Project is planned to enhance both sides of the 
main mall greenway. The aim is to add representation of native species that will also bring 
seasonal colors in the area, while at the same time, enhance our landscape to be more 
adaptable to extreme climate, and with a design that has the ability to lower longer term 
operation cost. 

With its proximity to the Rhodo wood, this area provides an excellent opportunity to create 
a transitional green corridor that connects the campus to the Rhodo wood as well as the 
future Stadium Neighborhood.  

The timeline of the Phase Two of the greenway pilot project is expected to be after the 
summer season. UNA Sustainability and Operations department will have more 
information to share with the community later in this summer season. 

 

July and August High Impact Event Schedule 

June Longest Day Road Race Friday, June 14 
Vancouver Half Marathon Sunday, June 23  

August N/A  
   

 

 

22

https://stanleyparkecology.ca/ecology/co-existing-with-coyotes/report-a-sighting/
https://stanleyparkecology.ca/ecology/co-existing-with-coyotes/how-to-co-exist-with-coyotes/


   
                 

Page 16 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

FINANCE 

Annual Audit:   

The annual audit started in May and so far, everything is on schedule. The Finance and 
Audit Committee will be meeting with the auditors from Johnsen Archer LLP at ITS next 
scheduled meeting on June 25. The Auditor will then be invited to meet with the Board at 
the July 2024 Board meeting. At this point, the fourth quarter report for fiscal 2023/24 
(before audit adjustments) was submitted to the Finance & Audit Committee for review. 
This report was also submitted in the reports section under Finance and Audit Committee 
Update for the Board to review.  

 

New Financial System: 

The new financial system has been in use since the beginning of the fiscal year and so far, 
the feedback is positive. There are minor issues being identified and resolved as it goes, 
and the project has now been completed. 

 

2024 Neighbours Levy: 

We have been working with UBC for the preparation of the 2024 Neighbours Levy. Staff 
will report to the Board in July on what the projected levy will be.   

 

Financial Implications 
None. 

 

Operational Implications 
None. 

 

Strategic Objective 

None. 

 

Attachments 

None. 

 

 

23



   
                 

Page 17 of 17 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager 
2. Dave Gillis, Recreation Manager 
3. Glenda Ollero, Communications Manager 
4. Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

24



Page 1 of 4 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: June 11, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

Subject: UNA Administrative Office Lease Renewal 2024 

Background 
The UNA Administrative Office lease is up for renewal. Staff is recommending that the 
UNA renew the lease for a period of five years with conditions in the agreement that will 
allow the organization to move into a larger office space when one becomes available. 

During the May 2024 Board meeting, the Board requested staff to revise the agreement 
and report back with comparable office rental data.  

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the UNA Administrative 
Office and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

Discussion 

The lease for the UNA Administrative Office located at 202-5923 Berton Avenue expires 
on July 31, 2024. The UNA has been in this current location since 2018. The UNA 
formerly occupied the adjacent office location at 201-5923 Berton Avenue. However, as 
a cost saving measure recommended by the 2016 Joint Financial Task Force (JFTF), 
the UNA switched locations and downsized from an area of 2859 square feet to the 
current location, an area of 1661 square feet. 

The move to the smaller office location was done as a cost-cutting measure without the 
benefit of an office space needs assessment for the organization.  

In 2022, an assessment of the UNA main office space was completed. The consultant 
suggested in the assessment report that the UNA requires approximately 3300 square 
feet of office space to house the full complement of administrative staff (including the 
administration, operations, communication, and finance departmental needs). 

The UNA has worked with UBCPT since 2022 on locating a larger and more suitable 
office space for the UNA Main Office. Unfortunately, there has been no opportunity for 
new or additional office rental space. The contributing factors include the lack of suitable 
spaces, potential suitable spaces were in the middle of multi-year term contracts, or the 
existing tenant continuing their lease. 

25



Page 2 of 4 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Based on the most recent communication with UBCPT, they do not expect to see any 
office space in the range of 3300-4000 square feet to become available within the next 
2 years. 

Staff will continue actively pursuing a larger office space adequate to house all 
administrative staff in a single location. Staff is recommending that the UNA enter into a 
five-year renewal for the current Berton location, with an option to move to a larger 
office space under the Wesbrook Properties portfolio when one becomes available.  

The new agreement also includes a provision to offer five complementary secured and 
designated parking spaces for office staff to utilize. 

Update 1 – Revision of Agreement 

Section 8 of the original lease agreement was adjusted to be less restrictive and reflect 
the ongoing nature of the search and move to a larger and more suitable office space 
with the UBCPT. 

Section 10 of the original lease agreement was removed as it was not relevant to the 
UNA. 

Update 2 – Comparable Office Rental Data 

The UNA reached out to UBCPT for a list of comparable office rental data. A list of 
comparable was subsequently provided by UBCPT and it contains a table of 
comparable office space. 

1. Office Size
a. Office size ranges from 900 square ft to 15000 square ft

2. Terms of the Office Lease
a. Terms ranges from 1-year term to 5-year term

3. Rent per square feet
a. Per square feet ranges from $32 - $38

As each office space location, size and term is different, it will be challenging to make a 
direct comparison between offices. However, based on the comparable office space 
data, UNA staff was able to infer the following information: 

• The average rent per square feet in the comparable office space is $35.00 per 
square feet for 2024-2028.

• The renewal lease presented by UBCPT was $32.00 psf for 2024 to 2026 (Year 
1 and Year 2), $35.00 psf for 2026-2028 (Year 3 and Year 4), and $36.00 psf for 
2029.

• Generally, the office rent presented by UBCPT for Year 1 and Year 2 is 6-7%
lower than average. For Year 3 and Year 4, the office rent is 3% lower than

26



   
                 

Page 3 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

average. Unfortunately, there isn’t enough data to provide a supported 
comparison with Year 5. 

 

Financial Implications 
UBCPT, the landlord, has agreed to renew the current lease at $28.00 per square feet 
(psf) with new rates presented in the following schedule: 

• Year 1 to Year 2: $32.00 psf, represents a 14.3% increase versus the original 
base rent of $28.00 psf since June 2022 

• Year 3 to Year 4: $34.00 psf (6.25% increase) 

• Year 5: $36.00 psf (5.88% increase) 

The original Base Rent at $28.00 has stayed the same since the second extension 
lease that was signed in June 2022. 

The Common Area Management (CAM) cost is estimated annually and passed to the 
tenant in March. Currently, the CAM cost is at $16.99 psf. In the current economic 
environment, in consideration of the raising inflation rate, interest rate, and the general 
cost of utilities, as well as material supplies and labors, it is challenging to predict an 
accurate CAM adjustment. UBCPT suggested that, based on their best estimate, the 
CAM could rise anywhere between 5% and 15%. 

The funds for the current office location are fully accounted for within the approved UNA 
2024-25 Budget. 

 

Operational Implications 
For the present time, the lack of sufficient and appropriate office space for the UNA 
main office will mean administrative staff will continue to use space within the Wesbrook 
Community Centre. 

The UNA staff will continue to work with UBC Campus Planning and UBCPT to identify 
more suitable solutions to accommodating the UNA’s administrative operations in the 
future.  

 

Strategic Objective 

Organizational Capacity 

 

27



   
                 

Page 4 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Attachments 
1. Lease Extension Agreement for the UNA Administrative Office 
2. Wesbrook Village Sublease Office Form Lease for the UNA Administrative Office 

- 2018-2021 
3. Office Rent Comparison – June 2024 

 
Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Wegland Sit 
Operations Manager 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

28



14101591.1 

FOURTH LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 6th day of June, 2024. 

BETWEEN: 

UBC PROPERTIES INVESTMENTS LTD., (Incorporation No. 
BC0578584), a British Columbia company having an office at 
#200 - 3313 Shrum Lane, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6S 0C8, 
as Trustee, for UBC Properties Trust 

(the “Landlord”) 

AND: 

UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOODS ASSOCIATION 
(Incorporation No. S0044722), a British Columbia Society having 
an office at Suite 202, 5923 Berton Avenue, Vancouver, British 
Columbia, V6S 0B3 

(the “Tenant”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. By a sublease dated January 21, 2018 (the “Original Lease”), which sublease
was amended by a lease extension agreement dated April 21, 2021, a second lease extension
agreement made as of March 21, 2022, and a third lease extension agreement made as of
September 21, 2022 (collectively, the “Lease”), the Landlord did sublease to the Tenant certain
premises (the “Premises”) consisting of approximately 1,661 rentable square feet and
described as Unit #202 of the Building located at 5923 Berton Avenue, Vancouver, British
Columbia, all as more particularly described in the Lease for a term expiring on July 31, 2024
(the "Term").

B. The Landlord and the Tenant have agreed to extend the Term and further modify
the terms of the Lease on the terms and conditions set out herein.

NOW THEREFORE: 

In consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. The Term of the Lease is hereby extended for a period of Five (5) years 
commencing on August 1, 2024 and expiring on July 31, 2029 (the "Fourth Extension Term"). 

29



- 2 - 

14101591.1 

3. The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord the following Minimum Rental in 
accordance with the Lease and without demand, deduction or right of offset, in advance, in 
equal monthly instalments on the first day of each month during the Fourth Extension Term: 
 

Period 
Annual Minimum 

Rental 
Monthly Minimum 

Rental 

Minimum Rental per 
annum per square 
foot of the Area of 

the Premises 

August 1, 2024 to 
July 31, 2026 

$53,152.00 $4,429.33 $32.00 

August 1, 2026 to 
July 31, 2028 

$56,474.00 $4,706.17 $34.00 

August 1, 2028 to 
July 31, 2029 

$59,796.00 $4,983.00 $36.00 

4. The Tenant is continuing occupation of the Premises in its "as is" condition and 
the Landlord is not required to perform any work to the Premises. The Tenant confirms that all 
Landlord's Work has been completed in accordance with the terms of the Lease. 

5. The Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that the Tenant has no further 
rights of renewal or extension with respect to the Lease, as amended herein, except as set out 
in paragraph 10 herein. 

6. Section 8.1 of the Original Lease is amended by deleting the reference to: 

  “However, throughout the Term, the Landlord shall make available for the Tenant, to 
 use at its option, up to eight (8) parking stalls in the designated parking lot at 5923 
 Berton Avenue at the  prevailing monthly rental rates, plus applicable taxes, which rental 
 rates may be adjusted by the Landlord from time to time”, 

and substituting same with: 

 “However, throughout the Fourth Extension Term, the Landlord shall make available for 
 the Tenant, to use at its option, up to five (5) parking stalls in the designated parking lot 
 at 5923 Berton Avenue at no cost to the Tenant”.  

7. Notwithstanding any agreement or understanding to the contrary, for the duration 
of the Fourth Extension Term and any subsequent renewal or extension thereof, the Tenant 
shall be responsible for paying the Tenant’s portion of cost of parking area maintenance to the 
Landlord and the Landlord shall include cost of parking area maintenance in the calculation of 
Additional Rental, including through the collection of the Common Area Maintenance Cost in 
section 5.1(b)(i) of the Lease. 

30



- 3 - 

14101591.1 

8. The parties agree and acknowledge that, during the Fourth Extension Term, the 
Landlord shall provide written notice to the Tenant of any availability of a property that meets the 
following criteria: 

(a) is located at Wesbrook Village at the University of British Columbia’s Point Grey 
campus;  

(b) is available for sublease by the Landlord; and 

(c) has a rentable area larger than that of the Premises  

(such criteria being the “Subleasing Criteria”).  

 The Landlord and Tenant may enter into an agreement to sublease a property that 
meets the Subleasing Criteria at fair market rents for similar property and pursuant to such 
terms that are mutually agreeable between the Landlord and Tenant.  

9. The Tenant represents and warrants to the Landlord that, save and except as 
specifically set out herein, all improvement allowances and other inducements provided for in 
the Lease have been paid and provided and no further inducements are due to the Tenant 
under the Lease, as amended herein. 

10. Provided that the Tenant duly, punctually and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Lease, as amended herein, pays Rental and performs each and every one of the 
covenants, provisos and agreements in the Lease, as amended herein, contained on the part of 
the Tenant to be paid and performed,, the Landlord will grant to the Tenant an option to extend 
the Term, as extended herein, for a period of Five (5) years (the “Fifth Extension Term”). This 
option of extension will be exercised by the Tenant by giving written notice to the Landlord not 
less than nine (9) months prior to the end of the Fourth Extension Term, and not more than 
twelve (12) months prior to the end of the Fourth Extension Term, electing to extend the Term, 
as extended herein, for the Fifth Extension Term on the same terms and conditions set forth in 
the Lease, as amended herein, save and except this option of extension, the Landlord’s Work (if 
any), the fixturing period (if any), rental free periods (if any) including the Minimum Rental Free 
Period, and any other tenant inducements (if any), and the Minimum Rental; and the Tenant's 
obligations under any indemnities provided by the Tenant in favour of the Landlord or Head 
Landlord or any agreement by the Tenant to indemnify the Landlord or Head Landlord will 
continue to apply during the Fifth Extension Term and will be deemed to have commenced on 
the Commencement Date of Term notwithstanding any extension of the Term, as extended. The 
Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term will be determined as follows: 

(a) Minimum Rental payable by the Tenant for the Fifth Extension Term shall be 
negotiated and agreed upon between the Landlord and the Tenant based on the 
prevailing fair market Minimum Rental as at the commencement of the Fifth 
Extension Term for similarly improved premises of similar size, quality, use and 
location in buildings similar to the Building in which the Premises is located; 
notwithstanding the above, the Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term 
shall not be less than the Minimum Rental for the last year of the Fourth 
Extension Term. If the Landlord and the Tenant are unable to agree on the 
Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term within three (3) months prior to the 

31



- 4 - 

14101591.1 

commencement of the Fifth Extension Term, the matter shall be determined by a 
single arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of the Arbitration Act and in 
accordance with the foregoing provisions with all cost related to said arbitration 
split, equally between the Landlord and Tenant. 

(b) The Landlord and the Tenant will make bona fide efforts to agree as to the fair 
market rental value with respect to the Premises for the Fifth Extension Term. 

(c) If the Tenant fails to exercise the option of extension within the prescribed time 
period referred to above, such option of extension will be null and void and the 
Tenant will have no further option of extension in respect of the Lease as 
amended herein. 

11. This Agreement will be read and construed together with the Lease, and the 
Lease, as modified hereby, will continue in full force and effect for the remainder of the Term of 
the Lease as extended hereby and in accordance with the terms hereof, save and except the 
right of further renewal or extension, Landlord's Work (if any), improvement allowances (if any), 
rental free period(s) (if any) and any other inducements shall not apply to the Fourth Extension 
Term unless specifically set out herein. The Landlord and the Tenant acknowledge and agree to 
perform and observe, respectively, the obligations of the Landlord and the Tenant under the 
Lease as modified hereby. The Landlord and the Tenant hereby confirm and ratify the terms 
and conditions contained in the Lease, as modified hereby.  In the event of a conflict or 
discrepancy between the terms of the Lease and this Agreement, this Agreement will govern. 

12. The Tenant agrees, from time to time, to do or cause to be done all such things, 
and shall execute and deliver all such documents, agreements and instruments reasonably 
requested by the Landlord, as may be necessary or desirable to complete the extension 
contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its provisions and intention. 

13. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and 
their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns. 

14. Any capitalized term used in this Agreement which is not defined herein but 
which is defined in the Lease will have the meaning ascribed to that term in the Lease. 
  

32



- 5 - 

14101591.1 

15. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in either paper form or in 
digital form by facsimile transmission, electronic mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”) 
form or an electronic signature platform such as www.docusign.com. Any such digital 
execution and delivery shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
Provided however, in the event either the Landlord or the Tenant require this Agreement in 
paper form with original signatures, upon request, the parties shall manually execute this 
Agreement in paper form. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Landlord and the Tenant have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

 
UBC PROPERTIES INVESTMENTS LTD., 
as Trustee for UBC PROPERTIES TRUST 
By its authorized signatory(ies): 

) 
) 
) 

 

 
 
 

) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory ) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory )  
 

 
UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOODS 
ASSOCIATION 
By its authorized signatory(ies): 

) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 
 

) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory ) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory )  
 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



Size (sq. ft) Terms Rent (per sq. ft) 
UNA 1661 sq. ft Year 2024-2026 Year 1 and Year 2 $32

2026-2028 Year 3 and Year 4 $34
2028-2029 Year 5 $36

2024-26 2026-28
Term Year 1 to Year 2 Year 3 to Year 4
Average Comparable Pricing $35 $35
UNA Rent $32 $34
UNA Rent vs Comparable Pricing 93% 97%

Type Size (sq. ft) Terms Rent (per sq. ft) Rent (per sq. ft) 
2024-26 2026-28

Office 2079 from 2023 $36

Office 990 2023-2025 $33
2025-2028 $35 $35

Office 15984 2023-2025 $33
2025-2028 $35 $35

Office 2611 2023-2024 $32
2025 $34

Office 6957 2024-2027 $34 $34
2027 $36 $36

Office 2509 2023-2025 $33
2025-2028 $35 $35

Office 2411 2024-2026 $33
2026 $35

Office 1205 2023-2025 $34

Office 2420 2023-2026 $35 $35

Office 2491 2023-2024 $33
2025-2028 $35 $35

Office 4189 2024-2025 $33
2026-2029 $35 $35

Office 1242 2024-2025 $38

Office 2007 2024-2025 $38

UNA ADMIN OFFICE TERMS

OTHER UBCPT OFFICE TERMS

100



Page 1 of 3 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: June 11, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

Subject: Lot 10 Community Garden License Extension 

Background 
The Lot 10 Community Garden (Greenway South Community Garden) is owned by the 
UBC and was licensed to the UNA in April 2021. The UNA original license agreement 
was a 3-years term agreement that expired in April 2024, and this report is about the 
extending the license of the Lot 10 community garden. 

The UNA manages five community gardens in the Hawthorn and Wesbrook areas. Day-
to-day garden operations are supported by the UNA Sustainability and Operations 
department, garden volunteers, and local garden representatives. 

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the Lot 10 Community 
Garden and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

Discussion 

The Lot 10 Community Garden (Greenway South Community Garden) is owned by the 
UBC, and the garden’s management and operations are licensed to the UNA. 

The Lot 10 Community Garden has 30 plots in total plus a garden tool shed. 

This extension is based on the current UBC-UNA Lot 10 license. The extension has a 
five-year term, it will grant the UNA the permission to operate and manage Lot 10 as a 
community garden from April 2024 to April 2029. The UNA will continue to be 
responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the Lot 10 Community Garden. At the 
end of the term, there is an option for extension. However, the extension is subject to 
UBC’s decision.  

Financial Implications 

Financial implications of the Lot 10 community garden are largely divided into two main 
categories: 

1) Annual Garden Revenue, and

101



   
                 

Page 2 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

2) Operations and Management Expense 

 

Annual Garden Revenue 

The current annual garden plot gardening fee is at $60.00 for a full garden plot. The 
annual garden fee covers the use of a garden plot, access to tools and garden supplies, 
cover the cost of garden repairs and any other garden activities. 

The Lot 10 Community Garden is fully assigned. This garden is generating $1,850.00 of 
garden revenue annually. 

Operations and Management Expenses 

For the garden’s day-to-day operations, the expenses are mainly coming from 
springtime topsoil delivery, green garden waste removal service, organic weed spray 
and line trimming. These expenses totaled approximately at $1350.00 annually. 

 
Operational Implications 
The UNA Sustainability department continues to manage the administration, annual 
allotment and renewal process. The UNA Operations department will continue to 
support the garden’s day-to-day operation and maintenance requirements.  
 

Strategic Objective 

Environmental Sustainability 
 

Attachments 

1. Lot 10 Community Garden License Extension 

2. Lot 10 Community Garden License Agreement 2021-2024 

 

Concurrence 

1. Isabel Todorova, Sustainability Specialist 
 

 

 

 

102



   
                 

Page 3 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Wegland Sit 
Operations Manager 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

103



Treasury 
225 – 6328 Memorial Road 
Vancouver, BC Canada V6T 
1Z2 

Phone 604.822.3661 
Fax 604.822.5566 
www.treasury.ubc.ca 

March 25, 2024 

Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 
University Neighbourhoods Association  
202-5923 Berton Avenue
Vancouver, BC V6S 0B3

Re: License Agreement Renewal 

We refer to the License Agreement between The University of British Columbia (the “Licensor”) and 
University Neighbourhoods Association (the “Licensee”) dated April 1, 2021 (the “License”), to occupy a 
portion of lands legally described as PID: 029-436-788, Lot 10 District Lot 6494 Group 1 New Westminster 
District Plan EPP29484 to operate a community garden. 

The current term of the License expires on April 1, 2024. This letter serves to offer you a 5-year extension 
of the Term of the License from April 2, 2024, to and including April 1, 2029. This extension shall be on the 
same terms and conditions as stipulated in the License, save and except for the Term of the License, which 
shall be extended as set out in the preceding paragraph.  

Please indicate your agreement by signing in the designated space below and returning one copy by email 
to Silvia Magnano at silvia.magnano@ubc.ca. 

The University of British Columbia 

By: By: 

Name: 
Title: 

Name: 
Title: 

I hereby confirm acceptance of the License extension on terms and conditions as outlined 
above on behalf of the University Neighbourhoods Association 

By: 

Name: 
Title: 

104

mailto:silvia.magnano@ubc.ca


EPP29484

029-436-788

EPP29484

1st

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(Over Part of Lot 10, Plan ___ ) 

This License Agreement is dated for reference April __ , 2021 

BETWEEN: 

THE UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, THE UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH 
COLUMBIA, a British Columbia university continued under the University Act, RSBC 
1996, c 468, with an address at 224-6328 Memorial Road, Vancouver, BC V6T 122 

(the "Licensor") 

AND: UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOODS ASSOCIATION, a society 
duly incorporated under the law of British Columbia (Incorporation 
No. S0044722), having its registered office at #202 - 5923 Berton 
Avenue, Vancouver, British Columbia V6S 0B3 

(the "Licensee") 

In this License Agreement "we", "our" and "us" refer to the Licensor and "you and 
"your" to the Licensee. 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Licensor is the leasehold owner of lands lying and being situate on the campus 
of The University of British Columbia and legally described as: 

PIO: ___ _ 
Lot 10 District Lot 6494 Group 1 New Westminster District Plan 

(the "Lands") 

B. The Licensee has requested a license to occupy a portion of the Lands to operate 
a community garden as shown outlined in black dashed lines and identified on Schedule A (the 
"Licensed Area"). 

C. The Licensor and the Licensee have agreed to enter into this License Agreement 
to permit the Licensee to operate a community garden on the Licensed Area and such other 
ancillary facilities as may be approved by the Licensor (collectively, the "Permitted Uses"). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the license fees, mutual covenants and agreements 
contained in this License Agreement and other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the parties), the Licensor grants the Licensee the license 
and contractual right (the "License") to the exclusive use and enjoyment of the Licensed Area on 
the terms and conditions set out in this License. 

105



1.0 GRANT OF LICENSE 

1.1 The Licensor grants to the Licensee a License to occupy, subject to the terms and 
conditions of this License Agreement, the Licensed Area as shown outlined in black dashed lines 
and identified on the plan attached as Schedule A 

2.0 TERM: 

2.1 The term of this License (the "Term") shall be three (3) years commencing on April 
__ , 2021 to and including April __ , 2024 (the "Expiry Date"). 

2.2 We may extend the term of this License on either a month-to-month, or year-to
year basis, at our sole discretion, for such additional period of time as you may require, provided 
however, it is always understood and agreed that we may give you notice prior to the end of a 
month, or year during any such extension period that, as of the end of the following month or year, 
the term shall be at an end. 

3.0 LICENSE FEE, TAXES UTILITIES 

3.1 The license fee for the term of this License shall be Ten Dollars ($10.00), the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Licensor. 

3.2 The Licensee shall pay and discharge all existing and future taxes, levies, charges, 
assessments, duties and outgoings whatsoever which are now or during the term of the License 
shall be imposed, levied, assessed or charged upon the Licensed Area or the Licensee in respect 
thereof. 

3.3 The Licensee covenants and agrees to pay all utilities which are incurred by the 
Licensee in connection with the operation of a community garden in the Licensed Area on their 
due dates to the providers thereof. 

4.0 USE OF LICENSED AREA 

4.1 The Licensed Area shall not be used by the Licensee for any purposes other than 
the Permitted Uses. The Licensee acknowledges that it has satisfied itself that the Licensed Area 
may be used for the Permitted Uses. The Licensee will not use or permit or suffer the Licensed 
Area to be used for any other purposes. 

4.2 The Licensee shall conduct its business and affairs in the Licensed Area in a 
respectful and reputable manner. The Licensee shall not carry on or perform or suffer or permit 
to be carried on or performed or suffered on the Licensed Area any unreasonable practice or act, 
or engage in any activities which is or becomes a nuisance, a source of annoyance, a disturbance 
or interference to any person using or occupying the Lands. 

1st 1st

106



4.3 For the purpose of section 4.2 above, the Licensee covenants and agrees that it 
will cause any individuals who are assigned a plot of land within the Licensed Area for gardening 
to sign the Plot Holder Agreement as annexed hereto at Schedule B, and make sure that all the 
rules and regulations stipulated thereon will be duly observed and performed by individual plot 
holder. 

5.0 LIABILITY AND WAIVER 

5.1 All property kept or stored by the Licensee on the Licensed Area shall be at the 
Licensee's sole risk. The Licensee shall be liable for any loss or damage (including; without 
limitation any obligation or liability with respect to any claim for personal injury, loss of life, 
consequential or other indirect damage with respect to property, revenues or profit) caused to the 
Licensee or other persons using the Licensed Area. 

6.0 INSPECTION 

6.1 The Licensor shall be entitled at all reasonable times (after written notice given to 
the Licensee specifying the purpose) to enter the Licensed Area and other improvement thereon 
for any of the following purposes: 

(a) inspecting the same; 

(b) inspecting the performance by the Licensee of the terms, covenants,, agreements 
and conditions of this License, and by any permitted sublicense claiming by, 
through or under the Licensee of any of its obligations under its License; 

(c) posting and keeping posted thereon notices as required or permitted by any law or 
regulation; 

· (d) conducting an environmental audit; or 

(e) any other reasonable purpose. 

In the event of a chemical spill or any incident related to hazardous materials being exposed or 
after receiving a complaint, the Licensor shall have the right of immediate access to the Licensed 
Area to inspect facilities and/or operations as necessary. 

7.0 INDEMNITY 

7.1 Except to the extent of the sole negligent acts of the Licensor, its employees and 
agents, the Licensee hereby indemnifies the Licensor, its employees and agents and save 
harmless the Licensor, its employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions, 
damages, liabilities and expenses in connection with the loss of life, personal injury, bodily injury 
including death or damage to property arising from any act in the Licensed Area or through the 
occupancy or use of the Licensed Area, occasioned wholly or in part by an act or omission of the 
Licensee. In case the Licensor, its employees and agents, without actual (as opposed to merely 
vicarious) fault on its part, is made a party to litigation begun by or against the Licensee excepting 
in a bona fide action by the Licensee against the Licensor, its employees and agents, the Licensee 
will protect and hold harmless the Licensor, its employees and agents. 

7.2 It is hereby acknowledged and agreed that any person who enters the Licensed 
Area shall be deemed to be the invitee of the Licensee. 

7.3 The obligations of the Licensee to defend, indemnify and save harmless the 
Licensor shall apply and continue notwithstanding the termination of this License. 

107



8.0 INSURANCE 

8.1 The Licensor; its employees and agents shall not be responsible for damage or 
losses to the Licensee's property on the Licensed Area. The Licensee shall take out and keep in 
force during the term of this License General Liability Insurance on as occurrence basis, against 
claims for bodily injury, death and property damage, with respect to the Licensee's use and 
occupation of the Licensed Area. Such insurance shall have a per occurrence limit of not less than 
$5,000.000.00 and shallinclude the Licensor, its employees and agents as an Additional Insured 
and shall contain a crossllability clause, and coverage for the Licensee's legal liability and broad 
form contractual liability.Evidence that the Licensee has purchased insurance in accordance with 
the above terms and conditions shall be provided to the Licensor upon execution of this License. 

9.0 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE 

9.1 The Licensee shall execute all construction, repairs, maintenance or alterations on 
the Licensed Area in a good and substantial state of repair In accordance with any applicable 
statute, bylaw, code or regulation of any government, government agency or regulatory authority 
(the "Authorities"), including without limitation the British Columbia Building Code, the Rules and 
Regulations and Development Guidelines of the University of British Columbia (the "University") 
and pay all necessary fees, permits, assessments and charges related to anysuch construction, 
renovations or alterations. 

9.2 The Licensee shall maintain the Licensed Area and those portions of the Lands in 
the immediate vicinity of the Licensed Area in a neat and sanitary condition. 

9.3 The Licensor acknowledges that the Licensee shall make certain alterations, 
repairs, renovations, modifications, installations or improvements ("Alterations") to the Licensed 
Area consistent with the use of the Licensed Area as community gardens. The Licensor agrees 
that the Licensee shall not be obliged to obtain the Licensor's consent in relation to any Alterations 
PROVIDED that the Licensee shall not make any Alterations until it has first obtained the consent 
of the appropriate permitting Authorities and unless it shall first obtain and pay for all necessary 
fees for permits from the relevant Authorities. Upon the termination of this License and at the 
request of the Licensor, the Licensee shall forthwith remove any Alterations and restore the 
Licensed Area to its previous conditions. 

9.4 All Alterations shall be done by contractors or other workers or trades-persons in 
good and a professional manner with first class materials in accordance with all applicable laws, 
building codes, rules and regulations of the University. 

108



10.0 SIGNAGE 

10.1 The Licensee shall not display any sign, picture, advertisement, or notice of any 
kind on any part of the Licensed Area, without the prior written consent of the Licensor. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Licensee may only install signs in and on the Licensed Area, 
including facia signage to the maximum extent permitted by the University's sign criteria. 

11.0 LICENSES, PERMITS AND SAFETY 

11.1 The Licensee is responsible for obtaining and maintaining all licenses and permits 
required by the federal and provincial laws and the rules and regulations of the University, which 
pertain to the conduct of the Licensee's operation on the Licensed Area and the Licensee will 
obtain and maintain such licenses and permits during the Term or any extension period of this 
License. 

11.2 The Licensee is solely responsible for ensuring the safety of all persons that enter 
the Licensed Area. 

11.3 The Licensee will not install or suffer to be installed equipment which will exceed 
or overloaded the capacity of utility facilities servicing the Lands and if equipment installed or 
allowed to be installed by the Licensee requires additional utility facilities such facilities will he 
installed at the Licensee's expenses in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the 
Authorities in writing prior to installation. 

12.0 PARKING 

12.1 The Licensee, its agents, officers, invitees and other persons having business with 
the Licensee shall be prohibited from using any part of the Lands designated for parking except 
as permitted by the Licensor. Should the Licensee, its agents, officers or invitees park vehicles in 
the designated parking area or area of the Lands not allocated for that purpose, the Licensor shall 
have the right to remove the trespassing vehicles and the Licensee shall indemnify and save 
harmless the Licensor and the Licensor form any costs, claims, damage, liability and expense 
from any claims by third parties arising out of the removal of trespassing vehicles. 

13.0 TERMINATION 

13.1 The Licensor shall have the right to terminate the Licensee's license by notice to 
the Licensee if the Licensee defaults in performing or observing any of the terms, and conditions 
of this License and fail to cure the default within 30 days after notice thereof is given to the 
Licensee. 

13.2 If the Licensor terminates the Licensee's license pursuant to this License 
Agreement or if this License otherwise expires, the Licensee shall, upon the request of the 
Licensor and at the Licensor's sole discretion, be required at its expense to reinstate the Licensed 
Area to its original conditions immediately before the commencement of this License. 

14.0 ASSIGNMENT 

14.1 The Licensee shall not assign or sublicense or otherwise part with possession or 
permit others to use the whole or any part of the Licensed Area, without the written consent of the 
Licensor. The Licensee agrees that prior to providing consent pursuant to this section, the 
Licensor may request to see and approve of any proposed agreements with the proposed 
Licensees. 

109



15.0 OCCUPATION OF THE LICENSED AREA 

15.1 If the Licensee without default pays the License Fee, utilities and taxes at the times 
and in the manner herein provided and keeps and performs all the terms, covenants and 
agreements contained in this License that are required to be kept and performed by the Licensee, 
the Licensee may continue to occupy the Licensed Area for the Term without any interruption or 
disturbance from the Licensor, its successors or assigns or any other person or persons lawfully 
claiming by, from or under the Licensor or any of them, but subject always to the rights of the 
Licensor set out in this License. 

16.0 NOTICE 

16.1 Any notice, demand, request consent or objection required or contemplated to be 
given or made by any provision of this License shall be given or made in writing and shall be 
considered given or made on the day of delivery if delivered before 4:00 p.m. by personal delivery, 
otherwise it shall be considered delivered on the next following business day, or in the case of 
mail three clear business clays after the day of delivery if sent by prepaid registered mail, 
addressed to the Licensor at: · 

University of British Columbia 
224-6328 Memorial Road 
Vancouver, BC V6T 122 
Attention: Yale Loh, Treasurer 

or addressed to the Licensee at: 

University Neighbourhood Association 
#202 - 5923 Berton Avenue 
Vancouver, BC V6S 0B3 
Attention: CAO 

17.0 NO PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE 

17.1 It is understood and agreed that nothing contained in this License or in any acts of 
the Licensor and the Licensee hereby shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture or 
any relationship between the parties other than the relationship of Licensor and Licensee. 

18.0 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT 

18.1 The waiver or acquiescence by the Licensor of any breach by the Licensee of any 
term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or condition or any subsequent 
or other breach of any term or condition of this License. 

19.0 LICENSOR CAN CURE DEFAULTS 

19.1 The Licensor shall have the right at all times to remedy or attempt to remedy any 
default of the Licensee, and in so doing may make any payments due or alleged to be due by the 
Licensee to third parties and may enter upon the Licensed Area to do any work or other things 
therein, and in such event all expenses of the Licensor in remedying or attempting to remedy such 
default together with an administrative charge equal to 15% of the total of such expenses shall be 
payable by the Licensee to the Licensor forthwith upon demand. 

110



20.0 ENUREMENT 

20.1 This License shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the Licenser's and 
the Licensee's successors and permitted assigns. 

21.0 SEVERABILITY 

21.1 If any article, section, paragraph or subparagraph of this License Agreement shall 
be held to be indefinite, invalid, illegal, or otherwise voidable or unenforceable, the entire License 
Agreement shall not fail on account thereof, and the balance of the License shall continue in full 
force and effect. 

22.0 SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS 

22.1 All of the Licensee's obligations under the terms of this License and all of the 
indemnities hereunder shall survive the termination of this License. 

111



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto executed this License. 

EXECUTED by the Licensor on ________ , 2021. 

THE UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, 
by its authorized signatories: ) 

) 

EXECUTED by the Licensee on ________ , 2021 

UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOOD 

ASSOCIATION, by its authorized signatories:) 

c::f/-l~ ) 
Authorized Signatory 

Authorized Signatory 

June 30, 2021

112



\ ,---. 
r 12 
1-· 
'{. 5.t 
/ =1c"-
1-. -
LS.O 
.:;..! 

.• ,.,_·.1 --

-
I ·30 28 L 

I 

Schedule "A" 
Plan of Licensed Area 

24 
-29 27 

23 L-- ~9~t~~~~~~~~1 ..... _ 
22 

21 

-- ----
. ·--·--------~ 

, g _ _ _ - --- - ........ _ 
r'l - - -..... -

0 
[EJ , 

/--, 
I • ~ 
\. , 10 .'-4 

-~ 5J ! 

· 1A 

16 

15 

14 

j 

.:.l..---► 

\L 5.Q.1 

--- -

.... _. 
/ 1C \ 

J-_..:.. _ 

'· l- 5.Q.,/ 
0 

0 

CB I 
-

9 • 

..... _ 
8 

7 

. 5 ( • 

' ~ 
uJ 

1: ~ iJ -
• 

/ 

'\ 
' 

./ 

113



Schedule "B" 
Plot Holder Agreement 

("Attached") 

114



 

 

UNA Community Garden Agreement 
2021 – 2022 

 
The purpose of this agreement is to support the administration of the UNA Community Gardens program. 
To ensure the on-going viability of the program and successful upkeep of the community gardens, 
gardeners must comply with the below Terms and Conditions. All decisions made by the Sustainability 
Coordinator and the Community Garden Committee are in the best interest of those participating.  
 
Violation of the Terms and Conditions will result in the following steps: 
 

1. Gardener will receive violation notice from Sustainability Coordinator, by email.  
2. Gardener will be given a deadline to remedy the violation.  
3. If actions have not been taken to remedy the violation, a final notice will be issued indicating the 

date on which the garden plot in question will be forfeit. 
4. If violation has not been remedied by date indicated on final notice, the garden plot will be forfeit 

without refund.   
 
Terms and Conditions 
 
1. The use of a garden plot is for one growing season (March 15, 2021 – March 14, 2022). Gardeners 

will have the opportunity to renew the plot each year. 

2. Each household is permitted one plot. Plots are allocated based on original application date. 

3. The gardens are for recreational and household gardening only.  No harvest from the gardens may 

be sold.  

4. Gardeners are responsible for cultivating, weeding, fertilizing, watering, and otherwise caring for their 

plot to maintain an orderly condition and keeping with the general aesthetic standard of the garden. 

Watering schedules must be complied with during dry weather. 

5. Gardens are responsible for the weeding the pathways around their plots. 

6. Gardeners must clean their tools after each use.    

7. Gardeners must remove all garbage (plant I.D. tags, soil bags, garden supplies) from the garden. 

There is no garbage pick-up.  

8. All plants and physical structures must be less than 5 feet tall and not shade neighbouring plots. All 

tall plants (i.e. sunflowers) should be avoided.   

9. No trees may be planted in the garden plots.  

10. Gardeners should limit their planting of any large bushes (blueberries, rosemary, hydrangeas) and 

will be responsible for their removal.    

11. Gardeners must not plant:  

• Invasive species (such as English Ivy or those listed at http://www.bcinvasives.ca/)  

• Weedy species (such as mint) 

• Berries with rhizomes (such as raspberries or blackberries).  

115

http://www.bcinvasives.ca/


 

 

12. Gardeners must follow organic gardening practices. The use of pesticides, chemical fertilizers, or pet 

and human waste is prohibited. Manure, peat, seaweed, compost, bone meal and limestone are 

permitted.       

13. Gardeners are strongly encouraged to participate in any work parties organized. If gardeners are 

unable to participate in work parties, they should aim to spend at least four hours in a year 

contributing to communal garden tasks (weeding pathways, cleaning tools, tidying shed, picking up 

litter, taking litter home, tending shared plots).  

14. Plots must be tidied and prepped for winter by October 15, unless otherwise approved. This includes 

the removal of annual vegetation and the removal/collapse of remaining structures. 

15. Gardeners must direct questions and concerns to the Sustainability Coordinator or other UNA staff. 

16. Gardeners must use hand equipment only. No motorized equipment is permitted. Exceptions may be 

made for garden work tasks (such as plot repairs or blackberry removal). 

17. Pets are not permitted in the garden unless they are service animals.  

18. No smoking is permitted, 

19. Open containers of water are not permitted, due to mosquito breeding. 

20. Alcoholic drinks are not permitted. Picnics are welcome, but all food waste must be removed from 

the garden (and not disposed of in the garden yard waste bins). 

21. The University Neighbourhoods Association does not assume liability for adverse reactions to food 

consumed, or items one may come into contact with, in the UNA Community Garden(s).  

 
By signing this agreement, I agree to allow the UNA to share my contact information with the volunteer 
Community Garden Committee, and I agree to abide by the above Terms and Conditions.  
 
Gardeners who have paid online have already electronically signed this agreement and do not 
need to re-submit this document. 
 
 

Full Name:  

Signature:  

Garden  
& Plot Number: 

 

 

116



 

 

UNA Community Garden Agreement 
2021 – 2022 

 
The purpose of this agreement is to support the administration of the UNA Community Gardens program. 
To ensure the on-going viability of the program and successful upkeep of the community gardens, 
gardeners must comply with the below Terms and Conditions. All decisions made by the Sustainability 
Coordinator and the Community Garden Committee are in the best interest of those participating.  
 
Violation of the Terms and Conditions will result in the following steps: 
 

1. Gardener will receive violation notice from Sustainability Coordinator, by email.  
2. Gardener will be given a deadline to remedy the violation.  
3. If actions have not been taken to remedy the violation, a final notice will be issued indicating the 

date on which the garden plot in question will be forfeit. 
4. If violation has not been remedied by date indicated on final notice, the garden plot will be forfeit 

without refund.   
 
Terms and Conditions 
 
1. The use of a garden plot is for one growing season (March 15, 2021 – March 14, 2022). Gardeners 

will have the opportunity to renew the plot each year. 

2. Each household is permitted one plot. Plots are allocated based on original application date. 

3. The gardens are for recreational and household gardening only.  No harvest from the gardens may 

be sold.  

4. Gardeners are responsible for cultivating, weeding, fertilizing, watering, and otherwise caring for their 

plot to maintain an orderly condition and keeping with the general aesthetic standard of the garden. 

Watering schedules must be complied with during dry weather. 

5. Gardens are responsible for the weeding the pathways around their plots. 

6. Gardeners must clean their tools after each use.    

7. Gardeners must remove all garbage (plant I.D. tags, soil bags, garden supplies) from the garden. 

There is no garbage pick-up.  

8. All plants and physical structures must be less than 5 feet tall and not shade neighbouring plots. All 

tall plants (i.e. sunflowers) should be avoided.   

9. No trees may be planted in the garden plots.  

10. Gardeners should limit their planting of any large bushes (blueberries, rosemary, hydrangeas) and 

will be responsible for their removal.    

11. Gardeners must not plant:  

• Invasive species (such as English Ivy or those listed at http://www.bcinvasives.ca/)  

• Weedy species (such as mint) 

• Berries with rhizomes (such as raspberries or blackberries).  

117

http://www.bcinvasives.ca/


 

 

12. Gardeners must follow organic gardening practices. The use of pesticides, chemical fertilizers, or pet 

and human waste is prohibited. Manure, peat, seaweed, compost, bone meal and limestone are 

permitted.       

13. Gardeners are strongly encouraged to participate in any work parties organized. If gardeners are 

unable to participate in work parties, they should aim to spend at least four hours in a year 

contributing to communal garden tasks (weeding pathways, cleaning tools, tidying shed, picking up 

litter, taking litter home, tending shared plots).  

14. Plots must be tidied and prepped for winter by October 15, unless otherwise approved. This includes 

the removal of annual vegetation and the removal/collapse of remaining structures. 

15. Gardeners must direct questions and concerns to the Sustainability Coordinator or other UNA staff. 

16. Gardeners must use hand equipment only. No motorized equipment is permitted. Exceptions may be 

made for garden work tasks (such as plot repairs or blackberry removal). 

17. Pets are not permitted in the garden unless they are service animals.  

18. No smoking is permitted, 

19. Open containers of water are not permitted, due to mosquito breeding. 

20. Alcoholic drinks are not permitted. Picnics are welcome, but all food waste must be removed from 

the garden (and not disposed of in the garden yard waste bins). 

21. The University Neighbourhoods Association does not assume liability for adverse reactions to food 

consumed, or items one may come into contact with, in the UNA Community Garden(s).  

 
By signing this agreement, I agree to allow the UNA to share my contact information with the volunteer 
Community Garden Committee, and I agree to abide by the above Terms and Conditions.  
 
Gardeners who have paid online have already electronically signed this agreement and do not 
need to re-submit this document. 
 
 

Full Name:  

Signature:  

Garden  
& Plot Number: 

 

 

118



Page 1 of 14 

BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: June 12, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Athena Koon, Finance Manager 

Subject: FY2023-24 Preliminary Financial Results 

Background 
The UNA fiscal year ended on March 31, 2024. This report provides a preliminary 
overview of our fiscal 2023/24 results. Please note this result is preliminary and only 
used for reference purposes and will be subject to changes resulting from any year-end 
audit adjustments. 

The UNA financial report highlights for the fiscal year are as follows: 

Revenue 

Total revenue at the end of the year is $297K higher than budget (+4% variance). 

- Actual revenue from the Neighbours Levy for 2023 is $8.6M, which is $140K
more (+2% variance) compared to the original projected amount used in our
budget. The Fire Services Charge had an actual total cost of $1.8M, which is
$211K over the projected amount (-13% variance). The Athletics and Community
Access fees have now been finalized and the actual amount for the 2023/24
fiscal year is $666,758 along with the adjustment for 2022/23 with a positive
variance in $84,238 the net variance is at +19%. Contingency reserve is also
being drawn during the year, in total, the amount available to the UNA from the
Neighbours Levy, after all contributions, withdrawals, and payments regarding
GST are made, is $94K more than projected (+2%).

- Total Recreation and Culture revenue at year end is 9% higher than budget. The
revenue from programming has been strong for the year due to the performance
of the programs held at the Wesbrook Community Centre (WCC). Fitness
membership has not picked up during Fall/Winter 2023 for both community
centres. The Old Barn Community Centre (OBCC) was under renovation during
Q2 and the roof was replaced in Q3; the revenue generated from the OBCC was
affected by this, and the overall recreation & culture revenue is above budget by
$119K.

- Total Other Revenue for the year is 11% over budget. The Parking revenue
which also included car shared parking revenue has been very strong for the
year.  The interest revenue, a subitem included in "Miscellaneous”, is higher than
budgeted, as the budgeted interest rate is much lower than the actual interest
rate for the 2023/24 fiscal year. With the new launching of the newspaper, our

119



   
                 

Page 2 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

advertising revenue has also increased. In total, this section revenue is over 
budget by $94K. 

- On the other hand, the total revenue from External Grants and Other Funding in 
for the year was under budget by 6%. The variance is a result of receiving a 
lower Canada Summer Jobs subsidy and no Senior Grant received for the year. 
The total grant and other funding revenue is short by $9K. 

Expenditures 

Total expenditures at the end of the fiscal year are under budget by $603K in total of 
spending only at 92% of what is budgeted. 

- Total Engineering and Operations Services expenditures are at $1.5M for the 
year, which is 83% of what is budgeted. 
  

o General Maintenance costs are low as part of the budget is project based, 
which did not get to complete due to weather contingent reasons.   

o With the Common Area Maintenance services now transferred to the UNA, 
the supporting amount from UBC is no longer displayed as a credit to net 
our cost, as in prior years. Instead, the support is reported separately as 
part of our revenue. The overall Common Area Maintenance services 
costs come in lower than budget mainly due to the contractors’ cost 
increases come in lower than budgeted and weather event factors such as 
snow removal and storm cleaning.   

- Total Recreation & Culture Services expenditures for the year are at $2.8M for 
the year, which is 95% of what is budgeted. 

o Field maintenance expenditures are at 172% of what is budgeted due to 
pre-replacement preparation and required maintenance work.  

o Recreation Salaries & Benefits expenditures are lower than budgeted due 
to timing differences in filling a new budgeted position.   

o For the Vancouver Public Library (VPL) fees, the assessment for 2023/24 
based on prior year’s usage is $84.1K. It will end up being 30% under 
budget for the fiscal year. 

o Community Support expenditures are at 54% of what is budgeted due to 
some functions and committees’ budgets not having been utilized. 

- Total General Operations Services expenditures are at $2.4M, which is at 94% of 
what is budgeted.  

120



   
                 

Page 3 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

o General Operations Services for the year is at 80%. The after hours call 
service project is still in progress and did not get to wrap up before the end 
of the fiscal year. Also, there were funds set aside for Board Contingency 
projects, which did not get use this fiscal year.   

o Public Engagement expenses for the year were at 86%. Spending 
includes AGM and stipend expenses for the year. The AGM spending was 
slightly under for the year. 

Details of the operating budget results can be found in the attachment.  

 

Decision Requested  

For information.  

  

121



   
                 

Page 4 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Discussion 
UBC Neighbours Fund (Amount Available to the UNA) 

  Projected 
2023 Actual 2023 Variance 

Neighbours Levy (Services Levy and 
GMSL) 8,485,000 8,625,731 2% 

Contributions to Reserves       
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve -203,640 -207,018 2% 
Capital Reserve -101,820 -103,509 2% 
Rate Stabilization Reserve -84,850 -86,257 2% 
Community Field Replacement Reserve -60,000 -60,000 0% 

Total Contributions to Reserves -450,310 -456,784 1% 
UBC Withdrawals       

Stormwater Sewers * -693,831 -693,831 0% 
Fire Service Charge -1,592,075 -1,803,361 13% 
Recreation and Cultural Facilities   

Contributions (2022/23 Adjustment) ** 0 84,238 NA 

Recreation and Cultural Facilities 
Contributions (2023/24) -719,704 -666,758 -7% 

Total UBC Withdrawals -3,005,610 -3,079,712 2% 
Transfer from Reserves       
  Contingency Reserve 0 35,337 NA 
Net Amount of Neighbours Levy 5,029,080 5,124,572 2% 
GST (Net of UBC GST Credit) -82,444 -83,972 2% 
Amount Available to the UNA  $   4,946,636   $ 5,040,600  2% 
Notes:    

*      Stormwater Sewers are now finalized and the actual amount is $543,724.  
   

**   UBC Recreation and Cultural Facilities Contributions have been finalized. 22/23 deducted $689,391 and actual  
       $605,153 ($575,153 + $30,000)    

 

122



   
                 

Page 5 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Neighbours Levy (Services Levy and
GMSL)

Net Amount of Neighbours Levy Amount Available to the UNA

M
ill

io
ns

Neighbours Levy

Projected 2023 Actual 2023

2.56%
1.28%1.07%

0.74%

8.59%

22.32%

0.00%1.04%

62.39%

Neighbours Levy 2023

Infrastructure Replacement
Reserve

Capital  Reserve

Rate Stabilization Reserve

Community Field Replacement
Reserve

Stormwater Sewers

Fire Service Charge

Athletics and Community Access
Fees

GST (Net of UBC GST Credit)

Amount Available to the UNA

123



   
                 

Page 6 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Summary of Revenue and Expenditure:  

   2023-24  %  Year to Date:  

   BUDGET  
YTD 

Act/Bud  Actual    Prior Year  
REVENUE         
Payment from UBC         

     Neighbours Levy 
     

4,946,636  102% 
     

5,040,600  
     

4,110,109  

Total Payment From UBC 
     

4,946,636  102% 
     

5,040,600  
     

4,110,109  
Recreation & Culture         

     Wesbrook Community Centre 
        

383,000  78% 
        

298,778  
        

216,536  

     Old Barn Community Centre 
        

140,000  88% 
        

122,693  
        

109,013  

     Programming  
        

698,500  132% 
        

918,637  
        

807,197  

     Playing Fields & Park Rentals 
        

105,000  100% 
        

105,324  
        

101,350  

Total Recreation & Culture 
     

1,326,500  109% 
     

1,445,432  
     

1,234,096  
Other Revenue         

      Parking 
        

111,900  161% 
        

180,538  
        

150,459  

      Miscellaneous 
          

32,840  177% 
          

58,041  
          

47,600  

      Common Area Maintenance Support (UBCPT) 
        

733,256  100% 
        

733,256                    -    

Total Other Revenue 
        

877,996  111% 
        

971,835  
        

198,059  
Grants & Other Funding          

     External Grants & Miscellaneous 
        

165,000  94% 
        

155,692  
        

160,880  

Total Grand & Other Funding 
        

165,000  94% 
        

155,692  
        

160,880  
          

TOTAL REVENUE 
     

7,316,132  104% 
     

7,613,559  
     

5,703,144  
 
 
 
 

 
 

124



   
                 

Page 7 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

   2023-24  %  Year to Date:  

   BUDGET  
YTD 

Act/Bud  Actual    Prior Year  
EXPENDITURES         
Engineering & Operations Services         

Parking & Bylaw Enforcement 
        

161,856  77% 
        

125,280  
        

114,926  

General Maintenance 
        

132,520  52% 
          

68,256  
        

103,028  
Common Area Maintenance Fees          

     Landscaping 
     

1,249,736  86% 
     

1,078,370  
        

418,981  

     Road, Gutter and Sidewalk Maintenance 
          

53,550  79% 
          

42,312  
          

65,844  

     Streetlights 
          

53,000  88% 
          

46,901  
          

38,832  

     UBCPT Management Fees                   -    0%                   -    
          

80,000  

     Electricity  
          

80,000  96% 
          

76,893  
          

73,066  

     Other Common Area Maintenance Costs 
          

52,500  84% 
          

43,874  
          

47,187  

Total Engineering & Operations Services 
     

1,783,161  83% 
     

1,481,887  
        

941,864  
Recreation & Culture Services         

Fields 
          

18,000  172% 
          

30,876  
          

16,312  

Wesbrook Community Centre 
        

529,650  99% 
        

522,297  
        

554,380  

Old Barn Community Centre 
        

219,602  98% 
        

215,896  
        

213,811  

Recreation Salaries & Benefits 
     

1,292,487  85% 
     

1,100,598  
        

974,266  

Programming  
        

708,500  114% 
        

810,224  
        

765,625  

Community Access (VPL) 
        

120,000  70% 
          

84,100  
          

64,599  

Community Support 
          

76,500  54% 
          

41,143  
          

59,287  

Total Recreation & Culture Services 
     

2,964,739  95% 
     

2,805,134  
     

2,648,280  
General Operation Services         

Administration Salaries & Benefits 
     

1,540,274  99% 
     

1,532,234  
     

1,216,661  

Sustainability  
          

32,029  126% 
          

40,491  
          

33,390  

Professional Fees 
        

155,660  100% 
        

155,668  
        

165,462  

125



   
                 

Page 8 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

General Operating Services 
        

662,889  80% 
        

530,114  
        

520,035  

Communications 
        

106,000  100% 
        

106,107  
        

102,176  

Public Engagement 
          

71,380  86% 
          

61,600  
          

65,238  

Total General Operation Services 
     

2,568,232  94% 
     

2,426,213  
     

2,102,962  
          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
     

7,316,132  92% 
     

6,713,235  
     

5,693,106  
          

BALANCE SURPLUS (OR DEFICIT)                    0    
        

900,325  
          

10,038  
 

These supplementary notes are provided as background information for the financial 
performance during fiscal year 2023/24.  
Revenue for Fiscal 2023/24: 

 
 

 

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

2022/23 Actual
2023/24 Budget

2023/24 Actual

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

2023/24 Revenue 

Payment from UBC Recreational & Culture Other Revenue External Grants & Misc.

126



   
                 

Page 9 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

 
Revenue Allocation for Fiscal 2023/24: 

 
 

 

 

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

Recreational & Culture Other Revenue External Grants & Misc.

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

2023/24 Revenue - Other than Neighbours Levy

2022/23 Actual 2023/24 Budget 2023/24 Actual

Payment from UBC, 
5,040,600 , 66%

Recreational & Culture, 
1,445,432 , 19%

Other Revenue, 
971,835 , 13%

External Grants & 
Misc., 155,692 , 2%

Revenue Allocation

Payment from UBC Recreational & Culture Other Revenue External Grants & Misc.

127



   
                 

Page 10 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Expenses Allocation for Fiscal 2023/2024: 

 
 

Total Expenses Comparison for Fiscal 2023/24: 

 

 

Engineering & 
Operations Services, 

1,481,887 , 22%

Recreation & Culture 
Services, 2,805,134 , 

42%

General Operation 
Services, 2,426,213 , 

36%

EXPENSES ALLOCATION

0

2

4

6

8

 2022/23 Actual
 2023/24 Budget

 2023/24 Actual

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses By Department

Engineering & Operations Services Recreation & Culture Services General Operation Services

128



   
                 

Page 11 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Vendors who had cheques over $25K issued to them during Q4: 

Vendor Q4 Total Payment Date Amount Description 

Badger Earthworks Ltd $218,789 

2024-01-16 $44,205 

Landscaping 
Maintenance / Tree 

Pruning Services 

2024-01-17 $10,902 
2024-01-24 $27,456 
2024-02-01 $8,631 
2024-02-12 $22,289 
2024-02-15 $29,939 
2024-02-22 $6,180 
2024-03-07 $4,537 
2024-03-14 $7,377 
2024-03-21 $28,674 
2024-03-28 $28,599 

BC Hydro $30,230 

2024-01-23 $962 

Electricity 

2024-01-23 $1,103 
2024-01-23 $3,164 
2024-02-14 $29 
2024-02-14 $229 
2024-02-14 $555 
2024-02-14 $663 
2024-02-14 $880 
2024-02-14 $997 
2024-02-14 $1,047 
2024-02-14 $1,057 
2024-02-14 $1,182 
2024-02-14 $1,234 
2024-02-14 $1,251 
2024-02-14 $1,612 
2024-02-14 $2,175 
2024-02-14 $3,338 
2024-02-14 $3,547 
2024-03-19 $787 
2024-03-19 $951 
2024-03-19 $3,466 

Cutting Edge Vancouver 
Landscape Services $32,718 

2024-01-17 $8,421 
Landscaping 
Maintenance 2024-02-15 $7,424 

2024-03-14 $16,874 

Diamond Head Tree Care  $39,155  2024-03-27 $39,155 South Campus Tree 
Pruning Services 

129



   
                 

Page 12 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Jerry Berry Consultants Inc.  $25,671  2024-01-16 $25,671 CAO Recruitment 
Services 

Mack Kirk Roofing & Sheet 
Metal Ltd. $64,980 

2024-01-16 $52,233 OBCC Roof 
Replacement Project 2024-02-27 $12,747 

Meridian Landscaping Ltd. $40,635 

2024-01-17 $8,127 
Landscaping 
Maintenance 

2024-02-12 $8,127 
2024-03-07 $8,127 
2024-03-28 $16,254 

Scandinavian Building 
Services Ltd $34,388 

2024-02-29 $15,368 
Janitorial 

2024-03-21 $19,020 

Silver Star Painting & 
Renovation Ltd. $25,086 

2024-01-24 $8,337 Monthly Facility 
Maintenance for WCC & 

OBCC 
2024-02-15 $7,894 
2024-03-28 $8,855 

UBC Safety & Risk Services $56,256 2024-02-08 $56,256 Property Insurance  

 

Vendors who had cheques issued to them over 100K for the fiscal year: 

Vendor  Total Payment Description 

Badger Earthworks Ltd $696.967 Landscaping Maintenance 

BC Hydro $ 110,944 Electricity 

Commissionaires BC $ 102,798 Security Service 

Cutting Edge Vancouver Landscape 
Services Inc. $156,125 Landscaping Maintenance 

Dexterra Integrated Facilities $ 183,162 Janitorial 

Mack Kirk Roofing & Sheet Metal Ltd. $ 127,470 OBCC Roof Replacement  

Marsh Canada Limited $155,748 Insurance 

Meridian Landscaping Ltd.  $182,678 Landscaping Maintenance 

Silver Star Painting & Renovation Ltd $ 109,447 Building Maintenance 

UBC Utilities $133,096 Utilities Cost 

 

 

 

130



   
                 

Page 13 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

Total Capital Items for Fiscal 2023/24: 

Location Budget YTD Total Amount Description 

Wesbrook 
Community 

Center 

     $       9,666  Computer & IT Equipment 
$ 87,000 $98,352  $     59,868  Furniture, Fixture & Equipment 

     $       4,011  Recreation & Fitness Equipment 
     $     24,807  Tenant Improvement 

Old Barn 
Community 

Center 

   $       3,050  Computer & IT Equipment 
$112,500 $145,372  $     57,313  Furniture, Fixture & Equipment 

    $     29,361  Recreation & Fitness Equipment 
    $     55,648  Tenant Improvement 

Office $ 8,200 $ 4,448  $       2,194  Computer & IT Equipment 
       $       2,254  Furniture, Fixture & Equipment 

Total  $ 207,700   $ 248,172   $   248,172   

 
The variance of the capital budget for the year is in total of $40.5K and mainly was 
caused by the OBCC audio visual system replacement in total of $35K. In Q1, an 
inspection was done of the OBCC’s audio visual system, and it was identified that the 
system is in inoperable condition. The service provider recommended that the UNA 
replace the current OBCC audio visual system because parts are difficult to source, and 
it can no longer be adequately maintained. This item was not included in the 2023/24 
fiscal year Capital Budget and in July 2023, the UNA Board passed a resolution 
agreeing to withdraw funds from the Contingency Reserve to fund this replacement 
project in total of $35K. The balance of $5.5K variance was mainly due to the in WCC, 
there was a boiler part broke down not budgeted that required replacement. Since the 
amount was not material, it is not necessary to get funds from the contingency reserve 
to cover the replacement.  

 
Operating Surplus for the year: 

When it comes to the operating surplus, there are three documents related to how the 
surplus gets handled: 

1. Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy (Amend #3) - Rate Stabilization Reserve 
2. Neighbours Agreement 2020, sections 10.12 and 10.14 
3. UBC 2021 Financial Support Letter 

With the settlement of the Athletic and Community Access Fee and a surplus year of 
2023/24, based on the support letter from UBC dated on July 19, 2021, there is an 

131



   
                 

Page 14 of 14 
 

BOARD MEETING  
OPEN SESSION 

amount owing of $85,390) that will have to be paid to UBC Athletics. This amount has 
not been accrued and will be made in the fiscal year of 2024/25.   

 
Financial Implications 
None.  

 

Operational Implications 
None. 
 
Strategic Objective 

Organizational Capacity 

 
Attachments 

1. FY2023/24 Fire Service Charge Calculation 
2. Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy (#05-13) – Amendment #3 – December 2010 
3. UBC Financial Support Letter – Dated July 19, 2021 

 
Concurrence 

None. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Athena Koon 
Finance Manager 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

132



Ministry of Municipal Affairs Finance and Administration Mailing Address: 
PO Box 9843, Stn Prov Gov't. 
Victoria, BC  V8W 9T2 
 
 

Location: 
3rd Floor, 800 Johnson Street 

Invoice #:  FY24UBCF01 

July 24, 2023 

Matthew Boydston 

Assistant Comptroller, University of British Columbia 

Finance Leadership Office 

1958 Main Mall 

Vancouver, BC V6T 1Z2 

Dear Matthew Boydston: 

Re:  Invoice for Fire Protection Services Provided to UBC Neighbourhood Areas 

In accordance with the UBC Neighbourhood Fire Services Contribution Agreement, the Ministry 

of Municipal Affairs is requesting payment of $1,803,360.47 for expenditures incurred by the 

Government of British Columbia pertaining to fire services provided to the neighbourhood areas 

within the University of British Columbia for the period April 1st, 2023 through to March 31st, 

2024. 

Payment is due within 30 days of receipt of this invoice. 

Ministry EFT banking information below: 

SWIFT: CIBC TORONTO, CIBCCATT 

Account and Institution: //CC001000090 

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 

1175 Douglas St. 

Victoria, BC  V8W 2E1 

Beneficiary Account Number: /0964301 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs 

Should you require further information, please contact me at 778-698-5488. 

Thank you, 

Chris McLean 

Director, Financial Planning and Reporting 

Management Services Division 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs 

133



Fire Service Charge 2023/24  Calculation

Note: Population calculations reflect the formula in the UBC Neighbourhoods Fire Contribution Agreement, dated April 1, 2021

Population Summary

Current Year 
(23/24) Population

Following Year 
(24/25) 

Population 
Projection

UBC Students (Annualized FTEs as of March 1, 2023) 53,525                     55,131               
UBC Faculty/Staff (FTEs as of November 1, 2022) 14,626                     15,065               
UBC Market Properties (as of June 1, 2023) 14,909                     15,673               
UEL (as of June 1, 2023) 4,386                        4,386                  
TOTAL 87,446                   90,255             

UBC Market Properties Population Calculation

Housing type
2021 Census 

people/dwelling 
type (A)

UBC Market 
Properties        

(B)

Population 
(A*B)

UBC Market 
Properties        

(C)

Population 
(A*C)

    Single-detached house 2.7 0 0 0 0
    Apartment in a building that has five or more storeys 2.1 3,712 7,795 4,071 8,549
    Apartment or flat in a duplex 2.7 658 1,777 662 1,787
    Apartment in a building that has fewer than five storeys 2.2 2,426 5,337 2,426 5,337
TOTAL 14,909 15,673

UEL Population Calculation

Housing type
2021 Census 

people/dwelling 
type (A)

UEL Properties        
(B)

Population 
(A*B)

UEL 
Properties        

(C)

Population 
(A*C)

Single-detached house 2.7 447 1,207 447 1,207
Semi-detached house 2.7 0 0 0 0
Rowhouse (townhouse) 3 66 198 66 198
Apartment in a building that has fewer than five storeys 2.2 769 1,692 769 1,692
Apartment in a building that has five or more storeys 2.1 605 1,271 605 1,271
Frat House Bedrooms 1 19 19 19 19

TOTAL 4,386 4,386           

Current Year Following Year

Current Year Following Year

134



Population % of total Total Annual Costs Population % of total Projected Total Annual Costs
UBC Academic 68,151                     77.9% 7,828,095$                70,196                     77.8% 8,202,651$                                          
UBC Market Properties 14,909                     17.0% 1,712,507$                15,673                     17.4% 1,831,446$                                          
UEL 4,386                       5.0% 503,816$                   4,386                       4.9% 512,543$                                             
Total 87,446                     100.0% 10,044,419$              90,255                     100.0% 10,546,640$                                        

COST INPUTS

2023/24 Current Year Budgeted Total Fire Services Costs
10,044,419$                                                                           

2024/25 Following Year Projected Total Fire Services Costs
10,546,640$                                                                            

Previous Year Adjustment Calculation (2022/23 Forecast to 2022/23 Actual)

2022/23 Adjustment
2022/23 total forecasted cost 9,222,639$             
2022/23 total actual cost 9,766,020               
Variance (543,381)$               
Adjustment credit or (debit) for UBC based on 2022/23  16.72% population share: (90,853)$                    

2023/24 Net Fire Service charge with 2022/23 Adjustment applied
2023/24 UBC fire service charge Based on Forecast 1,712,507$             
2022/23 Fire Service Adjustment based on Actuals (90,853)$                 
2023/24 Net fire service charge 1,803,360.47$       

Current Year (2023/24) Following Year (2024/25)

135



Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #3 | Policy #05-13 1 

CORPORATE POLICY 

SUBJECT: NEIGHBOURS FUND RESERVE POLICY – AMENDMENT #3 
CATEGORY: FINANCE POLICY #: 05-13 

POLICY STATEMENTS 

UNA Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Policy 

Purpose of Reserve Fund 

This is the subfund of the Neighbours’ Fund comprised of a reserve of funds to pay for the cost of repairing or 
replacing the municipal-like infrastructure required to service the Designated Local Areas. Municipal-like 
infrastructure includes utilities (water and sewer), outdoor lighting, specified roads, paths and walkways. 

The Infrastructure Replacement Reserve was established to ensure continued operation of infrastructure in 
the Designated Local Areas through providing secure funding for replacing component parts or assets that 
periodically wear out or reach the end of their useful life. These expenditures are not typically included in 
operating budgets as they involve significant capital expenditures. 

Annual Contribution 

An annual contribution of 2.4% of the Neighbours’ Fund Revenue will be made to the Infrastructure 
Replacement Reserve. Any interest accumulated will be included with the Reserve but is in addition to the 
annual contribution requirement. 

Maximum Value 

Once the value of this fund reaches $10 Million, the UNA Board will review the adequacy of this funding level 
and propose a maximum value for approval by the UBC Board of Governors. The minimum value will never be 
less than $500,000. 

Mechanism for Withdrawal 

The UNA Board must pass a resolution in open public session to withdraw funds from this Reserve. The agenda, 
report and proposed resolution must be published one week in advance on the UNA website. The report will 
include recommendations to replenish the Reserve in a reasonable period of time. Withdrawals less than 
$1,500,000 can be approved by the UNA Board of Directors with the support of both UBC appointed directors. 
Withdrawals in excess of $1,500,000 must go to the UBC Board for approval.  

136



 
 

Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #3 | Policy #05-13 2  
 

CORPORATE POLICY 

Reporting 
The UNA will review the annual provision and the Reserve balance to ensure the provision continues to meet 
the funding requirements. This review will be conducted as part of the UNA’s annual budget process. Findings 
will be reported annually to the UNA Board.  

 

UNA Capital Replacement Reserve Policy 

 

Purpose of Reserve Fund 

This is the subfund of the Neighbours’ Fund comprised of a reserve of funds to pay for the cost of repairing and 
replacing facilities and amenities. Facilities include the physical aspects of the UNA community centres in the 
Designated Local Areas. Amenities include playgrounds and equipment in the Designated Local Areas. 

The Capital Replacement Reserve was established to replace major items that periodically wear out so that the 
facility or amenity continues to be functional over its useful life. These funds are not intended to replace a 
facility or amenity in its entirety as it reaches the end of its useful life. 

Annual Contribution 

An annual contribution of 1.2% of the Neighbours’ Fund Revenue will be made to the Capital Replacement 
Reserve. Any interest accumulated will be included with the Reserve but is in addition to the annual 
contribution requirement. 

Maximum Value 

Once the value of this fund reaches $5 Million, the UNA Board will review the adequacy of this funding level 
and propose a maximum value for approval by the UBC Board of Governors. The minimum value will never be 
less than $250,000. 

Mechanism for Withdrawal  

The UNA Board must pass a resolution in open public session to withdraw funds from this Reserve. The agenda, 
report and proposed resolution must be published one week in advance on the UNA website. The report will 
include recommendations to replenish the Reserve in a reasonable period of time. Withdrawals less than 
$1,500,000 can be approved by the UNA Board of Directors with the support of both UBC appointed directors. 
Withdrawals in excess of $1,500,000 must go to the UBC Board for approval.  

 
 
 

137



 
 

Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #3 | Policy #05-13 3  
 

CORPORATE POLICY 

Reporting 
 
The UNA will review the annual provision and the Reserve balance to ensure the provision continues to meet 
the funding requirements. This review will be conducted as part of the UNA’s annual budget process. Findings 
will be reported annually to the UNA Board.  

UNA Rate Stabilization Reserve Policy 

Purpose of Reserve Fund 

This is the subfund of the Neighbours’ Fund comprised of a reserve of funds to be used in the event the 
amount of Services Levy collected by UBC is decreased due to a change in relative ratios between the 
municipal general and debt tax rate of the City of Vancouver levied on residential property as opposed to the 
provincial/rural service tax levied on residential property. 

The Rate Stabilization Reserve was established to guard against changes in Vancouver’s rates that are not 
sympathetic to the UNA’s operating commitments. 

Annual Contribution 

An annual contribution of 1.0% of the Neighbours’ Fund Revenue will be made to the Rate Stabilization 
Reserve. Any interest accumulated will be included with the Reserve. 

Maximum Value 

The maximum funding threshold limit is $2 Million. If this maximum amount is reached, annual contributions 
can cease until a withdrawal is made, at which time annual contributions will resume. Any surpluses from the 
UNA’s annual budget are deposited to this Reserve. 

Mechanism for Withdrawal 

The UNA Board must pass a resolution in open public session to utilize funds from this Reserve as a source of 
income for a proposed annual budget. The agenda, report and proposed resolution must be published one 
week in advance on the UNA website. The report will include recommendations to replenish the Reserve in a 
reasonable period of time. The use of funds in this Reserve for that purpose must be approved by the UNA 
Board of Directors with the support of both UBC appointed directors. 

Reporting 
 
The UNA will review the annual provision and the Reserve balance to ensure the provision continues to meet 
the funding requirements. This review will be conducted as part of the UNA’s annual budget process. Findings 
will be reported annually to the UNA Board.  

138



 
 

Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #3 | Policy #05-13 4  
 

CORPORATE POLICY 

UNA Access Reserve Policy 

Purpose of Reserve Fund 

This is the subfund of the Neighbours’ Fund comprised of a reserve of funds to make annual contributions to 
UBC for the operating costs of the facilities to which the UNA has obtained access pursuant to schedule “F” of 
the Neighbours’ Agreement, provided that such annual contributions will be drawn only to the extent that the 
annual contributions agreed upon in schedule “F” exceed 15% of the amount of the Neighbourhood Levy 
collected by UBC in respect of that year. 

Annual contribution 

There was a one-time provision of $1 Million to this Reserve. Additional funds will not be added on an annual 
basis beyond interest accumulated in this Reserve. 

Maximum value 

There is no maximum funding threshold for this Reserve as funds are not being replenished or added. 

Mechanism for Withdrawal  

The UNA Board must pass a resolution in open public session to utilize funds from this Reserve as a source of 
income for a proposed annual budget. The agenda, report and proposed resolution must be published one 
week in advance on the UNA website. The use of funds in this Reserve for that purpose must be approved by 
the UNA Board of Directors with the support of both UBC appointed directors. 

Reporting 
 
The UNA will review the Reserve balance annually. This review will be conducted as part of the UNA’s annual 
budget process. Findings will be reported annually to the UNA Board.  

 

UNA Contingency Reserve Policy 

Purpose of Reserve Fund 

This is the subfund of the Neighbours’ Fund comprised of a reserve of funds to pay for unexpected or 
unbudgeted repairs and expenses which require immediate action. 

Annual contribution 

An annual contribution of 1.0% of the Neighbours’ Fund Revenue will be made to the Contingency Reserve. 
Any interest accumulated will be included with the Reserve. 

139



 
 

Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #3 | Policy #05-13 5  
 

CORPORATE POLICY 

Maximum value 

The maximum funding threshold limit is $1 Million. If this maximum amount is reached, annual contributions 
can cease until a withdrawal is made, at which time annual contributions will resume. 

Mechanism for Withdrawal  

The UNA Board must pass a resolution in open public session to withdraw funds from this Reserve. The agenda, 
report and proposed resolution must be published one week in advance on the UNA website. The report will 
include recommendations to replenish the Reserve in a reasonable period of time. Withdrawals can be made 
by the UNA Board of Directors with the support of both UBC appointed directors.  

Reporting 
 
The UNA will review the annual provision and the Reserve balance to ensure the provision continues to meet 
the funding requirements. This review will be conducted as part of the UNA’s annual budget process. Findings 
will be reported annually to the UNA Board. 

 
RELATED  POLICIES 
 

Policy #05-07 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy 
Policy #05-09 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy - Amendment #1 
Policy #05-10 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #2 

 
APPROVAL HISTORY 
 
ISSUED BY: Board of Directors APPROVED BY: Board of Directors DATE: 2008/04/08 
AMENDED BY: Finance Committee APPROVED BY: Board of Directors DATE: 2009/10/13 
AMENDED BY: Finance Committee APPROVED BY: Board of Directors DATE: 2010/12/14 
AMENDED BY: Finance Committee APPROVED BY: Board of Directors DATE: 2010/12/14 
 

140



July 19, 2021 

Richard Watson  
Chair, Board of Directors University Neighbourhoods Association 
#202-5923 Berton Ave.  
Vancouver, BC V6S 0B3 

Sent via email: richard.watson@myuna.ca 
CC: Sundance.topham@myuna.ca 
       Michael.white@ubc.ca 

Subject: UBC Financial Support for the UNA’s 2021-2022 Budget 

Dear Mr. Watson, 

UBC and the UNA share a commitment to the long-term success of UBC’s campus residential 
neighbourhoods, including the cost-efficient delivery of municipal-like services. As part of this commitment, 
UBC and the UNA are working collaboratively to ensure the financial health of the UNA in relation to 
external financial pressures and the impacts of COVID-19. 

In response to these budgetary challenges, the UBC-UNA Joint Financial Task Force (JFTF) was 
reconvened in September 2020 to discuss and make recommendations in regard to the long-term financial 
health of the UNA. The JFTF’s work included an update to the UNA 5-year Financial Model to allow for 
updated assumptions and to improve accuracy in budget forecasting. This model update informed the 
JFTF’s discussions and recommendations in consideration of the expiration of the Community Services 
Grant, the Fire Protection Offset, and other UBC funding arrangements as well as the impacts of COVID-19 
on the 2021-2022 UNA budget. 

We appreciate the UNA’s ongoing effort in working with the other JFTF members to ensure long-term 
financial stability of the UNA and neighbourhood service delivery. I also want to acknowledge the UNA’s 
immediate actions taken to reduce expenses and enhance operational efficiencies in response to the 
budget deficit that is forecasted for 2021-2022. 

As you are aware, at the December 16, 2020 meeting, the JFTF recommended that UBC and UBCPT 
continue financial support for the UNA in 2021-2022. Specifically, UBC and UBCPT have been asked to 
provide financial support in the form of: 

1. A reduction in the UBC Athletics Access Fee from 15% to 7.5% of the Neighbours’ Levy;
2. UBCPT Fire Service Landscaping Credits amounting to $330,000; and
3. The elimination of fees for residents of the UBC neighbourhoods who have a UNA card to enter the

Museum of Anthropology and the Botanical Gardens and the elimination of a charge for UBC
Library cards for qualifying residents, which support is assigned a value of $30,000.

In addition to this support, UBC is being asked to allow the UNA to carry over the UNA’s 2020-2021 surplus 
to partially fund the 2021-2022 anticipated deficit rather than transferring the surplus to a reserve account 
or paying the surplus to UBC. 

141



 

UBC confirms that the UNA’s 2020-2021 surplus may be retained by the UNA and that the financial support 
described in points 1 to 3 above will be provided. Furthermore, UBC will not reimburse itself from the 
Neighbours’ Fund for administering the Services Levy and conducting an audit of the fund for its 2021-2022 
fiscal year. 
 
In return for this support, the UNA agrees to pay UBC the amount by which the UBC Athletics Access Fee 
is reduced, subject to the adjustment described below, plus $3,286 (which equals the $30,000 value 
assigned to the elimination of fees referred to in point 3 above minus the requested reimbursement referred 
to in the next paragraph) (the “Debt”). The Debt is due at the end of the UNA’s earliest fiscal year for which 
it is reasonable to conclude that payment of the Debt in full would not result in the UNA incurring a deficit 
for the year or increase the amount of a deficit that would otherwise be incurred. In lieu of paying the Debt, 
the UNA may agree that UBC can withdraw the amount of the Debt from the Neighbours’ Fund, in which 
case the Debt is extinguished. Simple interest will accrue on the Debt each fiscal year of the UNA, at the 
prime lending rate of UBC’s principal bank determined at the end of the year. UBC will forgive (i) the 
interest for each fiscal year before the fiscal year in which the Debt becomes due, and (ii) if the Debt is paid 
or the UNA agrees to a withdrawal from the Neighbours’ Fund no later than two months after the end of 
fiscal year in which the Debt becomes due, all outstanding accrued interest. 
 
In its letter to UBC dated August 12, 2020, the UNA requested reimbursement for $26,714 paid by the UNA 
to the Museum of Anthropology and the Botanical Gardens in respect of access fees for residents. This 
reimbursement is being provided by being subtracted above in determining the amount that the UNA is 
required to pay UBC. (The amount of $30,462 stated in the letter is incorrect and has been adjusted to 
reflect a total of $16,215 paid to the Museum of Anthropology and $10,499 paid to the Botanical Gardens.) 
 
With the acute financial pressures addressed, the JFTF will shift focus to the long-term financial health of 
the UNA, including the 5-year plan. In particular, the JFTF will discuss options to limit or decrease the 
significant expenses of the UNA to address the future deficits projected by the model. In addition, the JFTF 
will review the basis for determining the UBC Athletics Access Fee. If a new basis is recommended by the 
JFTF and accepted by UBC and the UNA, and the new basis would produce a UBC Athletics Access Fee 
for the UNA’s 2021-2022 fiscal year that is less than 15% of the Neighbours’ Levy, that lower fee will be 
used in determining the amount by which the UBC Athletics Access Fee for 2021-2022 has been reduced. 
 
Once the JFTF recommendations have been implemented, we expect the UNA will be in a better financial 
position. These are all positive steps to securing the financial health of the UNA for the benefit of residents 
and other stakeholders. 
 
Thank you for the UNA’s commitment to continue this collaboration. To confirm the UNA’s agreement with 
the foregoing, please sign below. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 
Peter Smailes  
Vice-President, Finance & Operations, The University of British Columbia 
 
 
 

142



 

Acknowledged and agreed to on behalf of the University Neighbourhoods Association the ____ day of 
_______, 2021 by: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Richard Watson, Chair University Neighbourhoods Association 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

143



Page 1 of 4 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 31, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

Subject: 2024-25 Insurance Renewal Update 

Background 
The UNA insurance coverage comes up for its annual renewal on July 1 while the quote 
for the insurance premiums is expected to be available by mid-June. This report is 
intended to provide a high-level estimate of the 2024-25 renewal based on the most up-
to-date insurance broker estimation. 

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to agree on behalf of the 
UNA to the insurance coverages for the period July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

Discussion 

The UNA procures insurance on an annual basis from July 1 to June 30 of the following 
year. 
The following insurance policies are set to expire on June 30, 2024: 

• Commercial General Liability
• Property All Risk
• Abuse Liability

The Directors and Officers insurance policy is still effective until June 30, 2025. No 
action concerning this insurance policy is required at this time. 

As noted earlier in this report, the timing for the renewal is awkward. The UNA normally 
receives a confirmation of the insurance renewal premiums after the June Board 
meeting. This means that confirming the insurance renewal takes place during the 
intervals between Board meetings. However, to agree to the insurance renewal plan, 
the Board has to approve it. 
To address the timing issue, last year, the Board authorized the Chief Administrative 
Officer to agree on behalf of the UNA to the insurance coverages for the upcoming year. 
For the 2024 Abuse Coverage, our broker mentioned there are very few insurers still 
offering Abuse Liability. In addition, due to the increased number of volunteers 
(increased by over 200% due to increased engagement and a better tracking system), 

144



   
                 

Page 2 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

the insurance broker indicated that the additional volunteers will likely trigger an 
increase in the Abuse Coverage.  
For 2024 Property Content insurance, the replacement value of office content has 
increased due to the recent price inflation, new equipment purchased for the renovation 
in Old Barn Community Centre and Old Barn Fitness Centre, and finally the audio-video 
equipment enhancement across all offices and facilities in 2023-24. 
To address future cyber security concerns, the UNA has requested a quote for Cyber 
Security coverage to review. 
 
Insurance Coverage 2023-24 

Premium 
Estimated Change 
(%) 

2024-25 
Premium 
Estimate 

Commercial 
General 
Liability 

$10M 
Coverage 
$10,000 
Deductible 

$108,727.02 5-7% increase $114,160 - 
$116,330 
 

Abuse 
Coverage 

$1M 
Coverage 
$50,000 
Deductible 

$41,000 10% increase 
The estimated 10% 
increase does not 
take into account of 
the increased in 
volunteers.  

$45,100 
 

Directors 
and 
Officers  

$2M 
Coverage 
$10,000 
Deductible 

$2,750 No change. $2,750 

Property - 
Contents 
Insurance 

Coverage as 
per values 
provided 
$2500 
Deductible 
Earthquake 
10% 

$6,021 Flat 
Adjustment due to 
increase in content 
value. Reno and 
new IT equipments. 
Approximate 10% 
increase in content 
value. 

$6,700  
 

Property – 
Building 
Insurance 

$10,000 
Deductible 
10% 
Earthquake 

$56,256 15% increase $64,694  
 

145



   
                 

Page 3 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

 
Financial Implications 
For 2024-2025, the UNA budgeted $225,000 to cover the cost of insurance premiums.  

The estimated total amount for insurance is as follows: 

 

Insurance Provider Premium 
Commercial General Liability AXA $116,330 
Abuse Beazley $45,100 
Property Building UCIPP $64,694 
Property Contents Aviva $6,700 
Directors and Officers Trisura $2,750 

Estimated Total: $235,574 
 

Operational Implications 
None. 

 

Strategic Objective 

Governance 

 

Attachments 
None. 

 

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Wegland Sit 
Operations Manager 

146



   
                 

Page 4 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

 

147



Page 1 of 3 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 27, 2024 

Meeting Date: June 18, 2024 

From:  Chris Hakim, Corporate Services Specialist 

Subject: 2024 UNA Bylaw Amendments Report 

Background 
In April 2024, the Board directed staff to draft the bylaw amendments (in consultation 
with legal counsel) and policy statements that implement a byelection and appointment 
process. In May 2024, the Governance & Human Resources Committee recommended 
that few of the details of the process be implemented in the UNA Bylaws and give the 
Board discretion to determine the remaining details in the form of a policy. 

This report details the draft bylaw amendments related to the byelection and 
appointment process, and other minor changes.  

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board seek approval at the 2024 UNA Annual General Meeting for the 
proposed amendments to the UNA Bylaws, as circulated. 

Discussion 

Based on the Committee’s feedback at its May 2024 meeting, a set of bylaw 
amendments have been drafted to implement a byelection and appointment process. In 
addition to allowing for byelections to be held, these amendments would ensure that 
appointments to the Board follow the neighbourhood representation limit. 

This set of bylaw amendments also addresses three other minor items: 

• the cessation of a Director’s term;
• the annual amount of the stipend for directors and the Chair for 2024; and
• the UBC Members’ participation in and access to documents prepared for Board

meetings.

Under the current UNA Bylaws, the only event that would not result in a person ceasing 
to be a Director is ceasing to be a UNA Member. For example, if a Director changed 
their residence to outside of the neighbourhoods, they would no longer be a UNA 
Member. However, that Director could maintain their position. The proposed bylaw 

148



   
                 

Page 2 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

amendments include a list of events that would result in a Director ceasing to hold 
office, notably, if they were to cease to be a member. 

The current UNA Bylaws details the annual amount of the stipend for directors and the 
Chair for 2023. The proposed bylaw amendments update the annual amounts to its 
2024 calculation.  

With the Neighbours Agreement 2024 negotiations underway, UBC has agreed to 
proposed changes related to the UBC Members’ participation in and access to 
documents prepared for Board meetings in the new agreement. These rights are also 
contained in the UNA Bylaws. The proposed bylaw amendments are intended to reflect 
the revised provisions that the UNA and UBC have agreed to include in the new 
agreement. 

 

Next Steps 

If the Board decides to seek approval for these amendments at the upcoming 2024 
UNA Annual General Meeting, staff can prepare a policy that contains the details of the 
byelection and appointment process. The goal would be to have that policy ready to 
take effect once the proposed bylaw amendments have been approved. 

 

Financial Implications 
None. 

 

Operational Implications 
None. 

 

Strategic Objective 

Governance 

 

Attachments 

1. Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Clean Version 
2. Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Redlined Version 

 

 

149



   
                 

Page 3 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Concurrence 

None. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Chris Hakim 
Corporate Services Specialist 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

150



Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Clean Version 1 – May 28, 2024 

- 1 -

Amendments to UNA Bylaws 

The following amendments are made to the Bylaws of the University Neighbourhoods 
Association: 

1. The heading to Bylaws 5.1 to 5.20 is replaced by “GENERAL ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS”.

2. Bylaw 6.4 is renumbered as Bylaw 6.3.

3. Bylaw 6.5 is replaced by the following:

6.5 A Director ceases to hold office when any of the following occurs: 

(a) the Director’s term of office expires;

(b) the Director resigns in accordance with the Societies Act;

(c) the Director ceases to be qualified under the Societies Act to be a director of
a society;

(d) the Director ceases to be a member; or

(e) the Director is removed from office in accordance with Bylaw 6.8.

4. Bylaw 6.6 is renumbered as Bylaw 6.4 and amended to read as follows:

6.4 A person elected as a director in a general election or a byelection holds 
office for a term that 

(a) commences at the start of the first Board meeting after the last day of the
voting period for the election or byelection, and

(b) ends at the start of the first Board meeting after the last day of the voting
period for the next general election of directors.

5. The following Bylaw 6.6 is added:

6.6    If at any time there are fewer than 7 Directors, the Board may require the
Association to hold a byelection to fill the vacancies. The following provisions apply with
respect to a byelection:

(a) Bylaws 5.2 and 5.15 to 5.19 apply with respect to the byelection.

(b) Subject to clause (a), the Board shall establish the rules and procedures for
the byelection.

151



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Clean Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 2 - 

6. Bylaw 6.7 is replaced by the following: 

6.7    If at any time there are fewer than 7 Directors, the Board may appoint a 
Resident Member to fill a vacancy. The following provisions apply with respect to an 
appointment: 
 

(a) The Board shall not appoint a person to fill a vacancy if the appointment of 
that person would result in more than 3 Directors who reside in a particular 
Local Area or Designated Building. 

 
(b) The term of office of a person who is so appointed commences on the day 

specified by the Board and ends at the start of the first Board meeting after 
the last day of the voting period for the next general election of directors. 

7. Bylaw 6.12 is replaced by the following: 

6.12   The annual amount of the stipend for 2024 is $7,216 for service as a director 
other than the Chair and $10,824 for service as the Chair. The annual amount of the stipend 
for each subsequent year shall be determined by multiplying the annual amount of the stipend 
for the preceding year by the ratio of the Consumer Price Index for that preceding year to the 
Consumer Price Index for the year that is two years preceding. For this purpose, the 
Consumer Price Index for a year is the annual average all-items Consumer Price Index for 
the year for British Columbia, not seasonally adjusted, as determined by Statistics Canada.  

8. Bylaw 6.19 is replaced by the following: 

6.19   A term as a director served by a member who has been appointed to fill a 
vacancy or elected in a byelection (other than a member appointed or elected within 6 
months after the last day of the voting period for a general election of directors) shall not be 
counted as a term for the purposes of Bylaw 6.17. 

9. Bylaw 6.20 is deleted. 

10. The portion of Bylaw 8.2 before clause (a) thereof is replaced by the following: 

8.2    The Board may exclude the UBC Members from attending the portion of a 
closed or restricted closed session of a Board meeting that involves consideration of a 
matter for which it can reasonably be concluded that UBC may be adverse in interest to the 
Association, but only if the UBC Members are 

11. Bylaws 8.6 and 8.7 are replaced by the following: 

8.6   The Association shall provide the UBC Members with reasonable notice of all 
Board meetings and with all documents prepared for Board meetings, except 
 

(a) documents relating to any matter for which the Chair (or a delegate of the 
Chair) reasonably believes that UBC will be adverse in interest to the 
Association and anticipates that a Board motion excluding the UBC Members 
will be adopted if the UBC Members do not recuse themselves; and 

152



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Clean Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 3 - 

 
(b) the minutes of a closed session or restricted closed session of a Board 

meeting from any portion of which the UBC Members were excluded by a 
Board motion or recused themselves, or that they did not attend after the 
UNA complied with Bylaw 8.2 in respect of a matter to be considered in the 
session. 

 
8.7   If a motion to exclude the UBC Members from the consideration of a matter in 
respect of which the Association complied with Bylaw 8.2 is made but not adopted, the 
Association shall give the UBC Members the documents relating to the matter. 

 
 

153



Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Version 1 – May 28, 2024 

- 1 -

Amendments to UNA Bylaws  

The following amendments are made to the Bylaws of the University Neighbourhoods 
Association: 

1. The heading to Bylaws 5.1 to 5.20 is replaced by “GENERAL ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS”.

2. Bylaw 6.4 is renumbered as Bylaw 6.3.

3. Bylaw 6.5 is replaced by the following:

6.5 A Director ceases to hold office when any of the following occurs: 

(a) the Director’s term of office expires;

(b) the Director resigns in accordance with the Societies Act;

(c) the Director ceases to be qualified under the Societies Act to be a director of
a society; 

(d) the Director ceases to be a member; or

(e) the Director is removed from office in accordance with Bylaw 6.8.

The current heading is “ELECTION OF DIRECTORS”. The word “GENERAL” is added 
because the bylaws are not for byelections (except to the extent made applicable by 
proposed Bylaw 6.6). 

There is currently no Bylaw 6.3. 

Bylaw 6.5 provides that a person ceases to be a director when the person ceases to be 
qualified under the Societies Act to be a director. 

The proposed replacement for Bylaw 6.5 lists all the events that result in a person 
ceasing to be a director. The only event that, under the current Bylaws, would not result 
in a person ceasing to be a director is ceasing to be a UNA member (e.g., because the 
person has moved away from the UBC neighbourhoods). This is an unintended gap in 
the current Bylaws. 

154



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 2 - 

4. Bylaw 6.6 is renumbered as Bylaw 6.4 and amended to read as follows:  

6.4    A person elected as a director in a general election or a byelection holds 
office for a term that 
 

(a) commences at the start of the first Board meeting after the last day of the 
voting period set by the Board under Bylaw 5.3(c) for the election or 
byelection, and 

 
(b) ends at the start of the first Board meeting after the last day of the voting 

period set by the Board under Bylaw 5.3(c) for the next general election of 
directors. 

5. The following Bylaw 6.6 is added:  

6.6    If at any time there are fewer than 7 Directors, the Board may require the 
Association to hold a byelection to fill the vacancies. The following provisions apply with 
respect to a byelection:  
 

(a) Bylaws 5.2 and 5.15 to 5.19 apply with respect to the byelection. 
 
(b) Subject to clause (a), the Board shall establish the rules and procedures for 

the byelection. 

Proposed Bylaw 6.6 permits the Board to call a byelection to fill vacancies on the Board. 
It makes certain general election provisions applicable to byelections and leaves it to the 
Board to establish the remainder of the rules and procedures for a byelection. 

The Board intends to adopt a byelection and appointment policy setting out when it will 
call a byelection to fill a vacancy, when it will fill a vacancy by appointing a new director 
as permitted by Bylaw 6.7, and when it will leave the vacancy unfilled. The policy will also 
set out the rules and procedures for a byelection. 

The general election provisions that are made applicable to byelections are the following: 

 Voting must take place online, using a secure voting system approved by the 
Board. (Bylaw 5.2) 

 The UNA’s Chief Administrative Officer is responsible for the conduct of the 
byelection, except to the extent that the Board has appointed another person to 
be responsible. (Bylaw 5.15) 

 The nominees who receive the larger number of votes are elected, with a tie-
breaker rule. (Bylaws 5.16 and 5.17) 

 As an exception to the previous provision, the byelection cannot result in there 
being more than 3 directors from a Neighbourhood or Designated Building unless 
this restriction would prevent all vacancies being filled. (Bylaws 5.18 and 5.19) 

Bylaw 6.6 specifies the start and end of the term of office of a person who is elected as a 
director. This bylaw is renumbered as Bylaw 6.4 and is revised so that it applies with 
respect to both general elections and byelections. 

155



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 3 - 

6. Bylaw 6.7 is replaced by the following: 

6.7    If at any time there are fewer than 7 Directors, the Board may appoint a 
Resident Member to fill a vacancy. The following provisions apply with respect to an 
appointment: 
 

(a) The Board shall not appoint a person to fill a vacancy if the appointment of 
that person would result in more than 3 Directors who reside in a particular 
Local Area or Designated Building. 

 
(b) The term of office of a person who is so appointed commences on the day 

specified by the Board and ends at the start of the first Board meeting after 
the last day of the voting period for the next general election of directors. 

 

7. Bylaw 6.12 is replaced by the following: 

6.12   The annual amount of the stipend for 2023 is $6,9442024 is $7,216 for service 
as a director other than the Chair and $10,416$10,824 for service as the Chair. The annual 
amount of the stipend for each subsequent year shall be determined by multiplying the annual 
amount of the stipend for the preceding year by the ratio of the Consumer Price Index for that 
preceding year to the Consumer Price Index for the year that is two years preceding. For this 
purpose, the Consumer Price Index for a year is the annual average all-items Consumer Price 
Index for the year for British Columbia, not seasonally adjusted, as determined by Statistics 
Canada.  

The 2023 stipends are replaced with the stipends for 2024, which are equal to the 2023 
stipends increased for inflation. 

Bylaw 6.7 permits the Board to fill a vacancy on the Board by appointing a new director. 
It reads as follows: 

6.7  The Board may, from time to time, appoint a Resident Member as a 
Director to fill a vacancy. The term of office of a Resident Member so appointed 
commences on the day specified by the Board and ends at the start of the first 
Board meeting after the last day of the voting period set by the Board under 
Bylaw 5.3(c) for the next election of directors. 

Proposed Bylaw 6.7 differs from the current bylaw in the following ways: 

 The opening words are made consistent with proposed Bylaw 6.6. 

 It prohibits the Board from appointing a person to fill a vacancy if the 
appointment would result in there being more than 3 directors from a 
Neighbourhood or Designated Building. 

The byelection and appointment policy referred to in the notes to proposed Bylaw 6.6 
will include the Board’s procedure for selecting a person to be appointed to fill a 
vacancy. 

156



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 4 - 

8. Bylaw 6.19 is replaced by the following: 

6.19   A partial term as a director served by a member who has been appointed to 
fill a vacancy or elected in a byelection (other than a member appointed or elected after 
2020 and within 6 months after the last day of the voting period forend of an general election 
of directors) shall not be counted as a term for the purposes of Bylaw 6.17. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Bylaw 6.20 is deleted. 

10. The portion of Bylaw 8.2 before clause (a) thereof is replaced by the following: 

8.2    The Board may, by resolution, exclude the UBC Members from attending the 
portion of a closed or restricted closed session of a Board meeting that involves 
consideration of a matter for which it can reasonably be concluded that UBC may be 
adverse in interest to the Association, but only if the UBC Members are 

 

11. Bylaws 8.6 and 8.7 are replaced by the following: 

8.6   Subject to Bylaw 8.7, tThe Association shall provide the UBC Members with 
reasonable notice of all Board meetings and with all documents prepared for Board 
meetings., except 
 

(a) documents relating to any matter for which the Chair (or a delegate of the 
Chair) reasonably believes that UBC will be adverse in interest to the 
Association and anticipates that a Board motion excluding the UBC Members 
will be adopted if the UBC Members do not recuse themselves; and 

 
(b) the minutes of a closed session or restricted closed session of a Board 

meeting from any portion of which the UBC Members were excluded by a 
Board motion or recused themselves, or that they did not attend after the 
UNA complied with Bylaw 8.2 in respect of a matter to be considered in the 
session. 

 

Bylaw 6.20 provides that a Director may resign in accordance with the Societies Act. This 
is an unnecessary bylaw since the resignation section in that Act operates without being 
invoked by a society’s bylaws. 

The words “by resolution” are deleted because it is not necessary to specify how the 
Board acts. 

Bylaw 6.19 excludes from the two-term limit in Bylaw 6.17 a term served by a person as 
a director if the person was appointed more than 6 months after the last general election. 
This bylaw is amended to extend its application to a person elected in a byelection more 
than 6 months after the last general election. 

157



 Draft Amendments to UNA Bylaws – Version 1 – May 28, 2024 
 

- 5 - 

8.7   Bylaw 8.6 does not apply with respect to documents relating to any matter for 
which the Chair (or a delegate of the Chair), reasonably believes that UBC will be adverse in 
interest to the Association and anticipates that a Board resolution excluding the UBC 
Members will be adopted. If the Board does not exclude the UBC Members from attending 
when the matter is considered, they shall be givenIf a motion to exclude the UBC Members 
from the consideration of a matter in respect of which the Association complied with Bylaw 
8.2 is made but not adopted, the Association shall give the UBC Members the documents 
relating to the matter. 

 
 

Bylaw 8.6 requires the UNA to provide UBC Members with reasonable notice of all Board 
meetings and with the documents prepared for the meetings. Bylaw 8.7 excludes from this 
requirement documents relating to any matter for which it is believed that UBC will be 
adverse in interest to the UNA, if the UNA Chair (or a delegate) believes that the Board will 
exclude the UBC Members from the discussion of the matter. If the Board does not exclude 
the UBC Members, they are to be given the withheld documents.  

Amendments to these bylaws are proposed to bring them into alignment with revised 
provisions that UBC and the UNA have agreed will be included in the new Neighbours 
Agreement that is under negotiation. 

The amendments do the following: 

 Move the exclusion for documents from Bylaw 8.6 to Bylaw 8.7. 

 Add an exclusion for the minutes of a closed session or restricted closed session of 
a Board meeting if the UBC Members were excluded by a Board motion from 
attending a portion of the session, they recused themselves from attending a 
portion of the session, or they did not attend after the UNA complied with the notice 
requirement for their exclusion. 

 Recognize the practice of UBC Members recusing themselves from discussions 
instead of being excluded by the Board, or not attending when they have been 
given notice that a motion will be made to exclude them from a discussion.  

158


	B. 2024.06.18 Agenda - Open Session.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	D. DELEGATIONS
	E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
	F. REPORTS
	G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT

	Binder1.pdf
	C.1. 2024.05.21 Open Session Minutes - Draft.pdf
	E.1. June 2024 C+CP Report
	Film & Events Notification
	Roadwork update
	Update on NCAP
	Development Update
	Community Update

	F.1. June 2024 Management Report.pdf
	F.2. UNA Administration Office Lease Renewal Report.pdf
	F.2. Fourth Lease Extension Agreement UNA Admin Office
	F.2. Wesbrook Village & UNA Sublease_January 2018
	F.3. Lot 10 Community Garden Extension Report.pdf
	F.3. Lot 10 Garden License Extension
	F.3. Community Garden License Agreement
	F.3. Schedule B - Garden-Agreement_2021-2022
	F.4.a. Fiscal 23.24 Q4 Financial Report.pdf
	F.4.a. Fire Service Charge Calculation (1)
	Invoice FY24UBCF01 UBC 2023-24.pdf
	Fire Service Charge Calculation Attachement.pdf

	F.4.a. UNA Neighbours Fund Reserves Policy
	POLICY STATEMENTS
	RELATED  POLICIES
	Policy #05-07 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy
	Policy #05-09 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy - Amendment #1 Policy #05-10 Neighbours Fund Reserve Policy – Amendment #2
	APPROVAL HISTORY

	F.4.a. 2021 05 05 UBC Financial Support Letter
	F.4.b. 202425 Insurance Update.pdf
	F.5.a. Bylaw Amendments Report.pdf
	F.5.a. 2024.05.28 Bylaw Amendments 2024 - v.1b - clean
	F.5.a. 2024.05.28 Bylaw Amendments 2024 - redlined




